
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY MAY 21, 2018 - 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

Amended Agenda 
 
   

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 
 

2. Roll Call. 
 

3. Approve Minutes of the April 16th Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this 
agenda, except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 
 

6. Downtown Design Review: 
 

a. Application by Oakfire Properties LLC, for the Oakfire Restaurant, a request to 
change the front façade and install a roll up ½-wall with windows, located at 
831Wrigley Dr., Tax Key No. ZOP00340. 

 
7. Continued Review and Recommendation of a Land Division, for a Condominium Plat, to 

create two condominium lots for an existing duplex building currently located on South 
Stone Ridge Drive at 530 & 532 South Stone Ridge Drive situated in the Two-Family 
Residential – 6 (TR-6) zoning, filed by Judith E. Castleman, 530 South Stone Ridge 
Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 Tax Key Nos. ZSR00066. 

 
8. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit 

filed by Ryan Finley, 805 Cumberland Trail, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 to install a 48” 
fence along the property line abutting Townline Road. The property zoned SR-4 and 
allows for a maximum street side fence height of 36” & 60% opaqueness. Tax Key No. 
ZTT00041. 

 
9. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit 

filed by Renee T. Wu, 527 Forest Glen Dr, Fontana, WI 53125 to operate a restaurant 
located at 239 Cook Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 located in the Central Business (CB) 
zoning, Tax Key No. ZOP00253. 

Added Item #6 – Downtown Design



10. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit 
filed by William and Carol Dick, 723B Geneva Street, Lake Geneva WI, 53147 to 
operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging at 723 Geneva Street, located in the Central 
Business (CB) zoning, Tax Key No. ZOP000158. 

 
11. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit 

filed by Lake Geneva Plaza LLC, W3323 Lake Forest Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to 
allow for the construction on a Convenience Store, Fueling Station, Dunkin Donuts, 
Restaurant, andCar Wash at 190 E. Main Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 located in the 
Planned Business (PB) zoning district with an In-vehicle Sale or Services zoning land 
use, Tax Key No. ZA370600001. 

 
12. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a General Development Plan 

for the Hampton Inn located at 1111 N. Edwards Blvd, filed by 1111 N. Edwards Blvd 
LLC, to construct a 5 story, 92 unit, Hampton Inn hotel at the South East corner of the 
Sheridan Springs Rd and North Edwards Blvd intersection adjacent to the Highway 12 
corridor. Located in the Planned Industrial (PI) zoning district, Tax Key Nos. 
ZA468000003 & ZA468000004. 
 

13. Public Hearing and Recommendation of an amendment to the Precise Implementation 
Plan (PIP) for property located in the Summerhaven of Lake Geneva Condominiums 
located on Lake Geneva Blvd, filed by McMurr II LLC. The request is to amend the 
existing PIP to complete Phase 1 of the development. Overlapping Multiple Tax Key 
Nos. ZSUM00101 – ZSUM00247. 
 

14. Conceptual Plan for the proposed subdivision of 17.14 acres of land to be called The 
Vista of Lake Geneva, located south of LaSalle Street and west of Woodridge Ct, by 
Omega Homes, 210 O’Connor Dr., Elkhorn, WI 53121.  The request is to develop the 
property into a higher density single family development than currentlypermitted, using 
Planned Development zoning. Tax Key No. ZA424700001 

 
15. Discussion regarding fence installation at property known as the Downtowner located at 

640 West Main Street, Lake Geneva, WI  53147. Tax Key No. ZOP00306. 
 

16. Discussion/Action regarding opening the annual plan amendment process and review of 
draft public participation plan to amend the City of Lake Geneva’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 

17. Adjournment 
 
 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 5/17/2018 



1 of 6 
April 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, APRIL 16, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Kupsik called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Kupsik, Alderman Doug Skates, Sarah Hill, Ted Horne, Tyler Frederick. Absent (Excused): 
John Gibbs, Ann Esarco, and Building and Zoning Administrator Walling. Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City 
Attorney Draper, City Administrator Oborn, Utility Director Gajewski, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
Follensbee. 
 
Approve Minutes of the March 19th Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  
Horne/Skates motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will to be limited to 5 minutes.   
None. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  
Correspondence was received from Charlene Klein, 817 Wisconsin Street, in favor of the Conditional Use Permit for 
Horticultural Hall which was distributed to the Plan Commission. 
 
Downtown Design Review 
 
6.A.  Application by Harbor Shores Resort, to replace the existing balcony railings with a change to the existing  

color at 300 Wrigley Drive. Tax Key Nos. ZHC00101 – ZHC00526. 
 Clint Walish, Corporate Contractors, on behalf of Harbor Shores, presented the request to change the railing from 

steel to aluminum with a bronze finish. 
 
Kupsik/ Frederick motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
6.B.  Application by Tara Pippin, 33601 Franklin Street, Burlington, WI, to recover an awning frame above the 

entrance of the business, The Hive, located in the lower level, at 755 W Main Street. Tax Key No. ZOP00269. 
Diane Koen, on behalf of Tara Pippin, presented their request. 
 

Horne/Kupsik motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
6.C.  Application by Michael Cohen, 214 Broadway, Wisconsin Dells, WI, to change an awning store front for the  

T-Shirt Center at 756 W Main Street. Tax Key No. ZOP00320. 
Linda Stevenson, Northtrop Awning Co, presented the request. Commissioner Hill asked for clarification for black 
and white colors for Downtown Design. Planner Slavney confirmed that the color black is acceptable. 
 

 Skates/Horne motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
 Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
7.  Review and Recommendation on a Condominium Plat, for a Land Division to create two condominium lots at  

an existing duplex building currently located at 530 & 532 South Stone Ridge Drive, situated in the Two-Family 
Residential – 6 (TR-6) zoning, filed by Judith E. Castleman, 530 South Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 
53147. Tax Key No. ZSR00066. 



2 of 6 
April 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

Ted Johnson, Godfrey Law Offices, presented the request. City Administrator Oborn stated two separate water services 
are needed for the two condo units. Utility Director Gajewski verified the separate services are needed for ownership 
and maintenance should the units become two separate parcels. 
   

Skates/ Horne motion to continue item #7 to amend the documents and separate the existing water services for each condo 
unit to the satisfaction of the Utilities Director. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
8.  Review and Recommendation of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for a Land Division for Kim Pischke of Core  

Commercial Inc. on the property located at 751 Geneva Parkway, to create three Lots that are 1.54, 1.51 acres 
and 2.54 acres, respectively with required easements on Tax Key Nos. ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, ZGBC00002. 
Ryan Cardinal, Cardinal Engineering, on behalf of Core Commercial Inc, presented the CSM for Land Division. 
Administrator Oborn shared the concern regarding the separation and designating the water line as public on an 
amended CSM provided tonight at this meeting. The agreement has language which needs to be corrected regarding 
some access easements. Oborn said there are concerns for the Economic Development Corporation. Planner Slavney 
stated this CSM is linked to the site plans on the next 3 agenda items. Slavney suggested the CSM approval should be 
contingent upon on the approval of the 3 site plans.   
 
Alderman Skates addressed the property’s access to Geneva Parkway. Skates reiterated the city staff’s recommendation 
to limit or cut off access through Keefe’s parking lot to Geneva Parkway. The Fire Department stated the driveway on  
the east side of the property and the Wal-mart entrance is all that is required. Administrator Oborn said the city staff  
shared their concerns of the driveway through Keefe’s parking lot and the applicant chose to keep their proposal as  
shown. Kim Pischke, of Core Commercial Inc, had a traffic study done on the area surrounding this site & introduced  
Traffic Engineer, John Bieberitz, of Traffic Analysis Design, who presented his findings. Oborn said Public Works had 
concerns with the island on Geneva Parkway being close to the driveway entering Keefe’s property. Skates also asked  
if the study considered the Symphony Bay subdivision being developed south of this property as well as apartments  
which have been approved the last 2 months. Bieberitz said another traffic study was done for the use of only the  
eastern driveway as an access point and confirmed the eastern driveway option was sufficient from a traffic operations 
standpoint.  
 

Kupsik/Horne motion to approve the CSM contingent upon the language change, agreement with the Utility Department 
and approval of agenda items 9, 10, 11. 
 
Skates/Frederick made an amendment to the original motion of the CSM, limiting access to the existing office building 
parking lot, by using the southern line of the driveway coming from the east shown on the current site plan drawing C-2, 
as a cut-off point.  
 
Roll Call for amendment:  Kupsik, Skates, Frederick voting “yes.” Hill and Horne voting “no.” Motion carried. 
Roll Call for original motion including the amendment:  Kupsik, Skates, Frederick voting “yes.” Hill and Horne voting 
“no.” Motion carried. 
 
 
9.  Review and Recommendation on a site plan review for Lot 1 that is 1.54 acres with required easements on a  

Certified Survey Map (CSM) proposed by Kim Pischke of Core Commercial Inc. on the property located at 751 
Geneva Parkway, Tax Key Nos. ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, ZGBC00002. 
Ryan Cardinal, Cardinal Engineering, on behalf of Core Commercial Inc, presented the site plan for Lot 1. 
Administrator Oborn recommended amending the CSM so the driveway to the north of Keefe’s parking lot is on the 
other lot. Planner Slavney said the staff report was written based on the current site plan. Slavney suggested a 
recommendation for the site plan to be modified to create a landscaped boundary at the north end of parking lot in Lot 
1. Oborn recommended it be contingent upon the CSM in item 8. Draper clarified the CSM is approved by the City 
Council and the Site Plan is approved by the Plan Commission only. 

 



3 of 6 
April 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

Skates/Kupsik motion to approve the site plan for Lot 1 with required easements on the CSM to include modified 
landscaping to create a buffer on the north side of the parking lot, contingent upon consistency with the CSM on item #8 
and include all staff recommendation and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Frederick voting “yes.” Hill voting “no.” Horne abstained.  Motion carried. 
 
10. Review and Recommendation on a site plan review for Lot 2 that is 1.51 acres with required easements on a  

Certified Survey Map (CSM) proposed by Kim Pischke of Core Commercial Inc. on the property located at 
751 Geneva Parkway, Tax Key Nos. ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, ZGBC00002. 
Ryan Cardinal, Cardinal Engineering, on behalf of Core Commercial Inc, presented the site plan for Lot 2 which 
meets all setback, parking and landscaping requirements. Administrator Oborn stated Lot 2 is for one tenant at this 
time, but if another tenant is added, a Conditional Use Permit would be required. Planner Slavney recommended 3 
requirements for the 2nd retail building: (a.) The lowest point in a parapet must be as high as the highest rooftop 
mechanical; (b.) Metal panels need concealed fasteners; (c.) If two or more tenants occupy the 2nd retail building, a 
Conditional Use Permit is required.  

  
Skates/Kupsik motion to approve the site plan for Lot 2 with required easements on the CSM, contingent upon 
consistency with the CSM on item #8, (a.) The lowest point in a parapet must be as high as the highest rooftop 
mechanical; (b.) Metal panels need concealed fasteners; (c.) Retail Building #2 is limited to a single business. If two or 
more tenants occupy Retail Building #2, a Conditional Use Permit is required, and to include all staff recommendations 
and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
11. Review and Recommendation on a site plan review for Lot 3 that is 2.54 acres with required easements on a  

Certified Survey Map (CSM) proposed by Kim Pischke of Core Commercial Inc. on the property located at 
751 Geneva Parkway, Tax Key Nos. ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, ZGBC00002.  

Steve Schulfer, Sketchworks Architecture, on behalf of Core Commercial Inc, presented the site plan for Lot 3. Planner 
Slavney shared concern for 3 trees located on the east side of lot, suggesting an alternative location and stated the parapet 
will be required around the entire Ross building.  
 
Kupsik/Skates motion to approve the site plan for Lot 3 with required easements on the CSM, contingent upon 
consistency with the CSM on item #8, (a.) The lowest point in a parapet must be as high as the highest rooftop mechanical 
with the parapet being required around the entire Ross Building; (b.) Relocate 3 trees from the east side of the lot to 
somewhere between the front of the building and Edwards Blvd, and requiring a revised landscaping plan; (c.) Metal 
panels need concealed fasteners, and to include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
12. Review and Recommendation of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for Serendipity and Sunsets LLC, PO Box 649,  
  Cary, IL 60013, c/o R.W. Torhorst to make a lot line adjustment for the property located at 962 Mariane 

Terrace. Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 
Richard Torhorst, attorney for the applicant, presented the request which would include a 6 foot easement on the 
southern portion of the parcel. Staff discussed the need to note the private easement on the CSM. 

 
Kupsik/Skates motion to approve CSM to make a lot line adjustment, to include a note on the survey acknowledging the 
existence of a possible easement and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
 Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
13. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Conditional Use Permit filed by Serendipity and Sunsets LLC. PO  

Box 649, Cary, IL, 60013, c/o R.W. Torhorst, for the demolition and new construction of a single family 
residence located at 962 Mariane Terrace. Property is located within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning 
district and applicant requests to utilize the Single Family–4 (SR-4) zoning. Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 

 Scott Lowell, Lowell Custom Homes, on behalf of Serendipity and Sunsets LLC, presented the request.  
  



4 of 6 
April 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

Speaker#1 Walter Bell, 938 Mariane Terrace, shared concern of the unresolved drainage issue at the present time and 
asks that the current drainage issue not be made worse with this project. 

 
Hill/Frederick motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Hill/Horne motion to approve Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
14. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan filed by Geneva  

Theater, 244 Broad Street, Lake Geneva, WI, 53147, to allow for the installation of an exterior walkup 
concessions and ticket sales, hanging sign, & sandwich board sidewalk sign located in the Central Business 
(CB) zoning district. Tax Key No. ZOP00246, ZOP000247, & ZOP000248. 

 Shad Branen, Lake Geneva Theatre at 244 Broad Street, presented his request which included a wall sign to display 
movie titles, but not mentioned on the agenda. Slavney stated a hanging sign is permitted by Public Works ordinance 
since it is in the ROW. However the sandwich board is not allowed per the municipal code but our zoning code does 
allow a sign with variable messages on the front wall of the building. 

 
Hill/Horne motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Hill/Skates motion to amend the PIP for an exterior walkup concessions and ticket sales window, a hanging sign and an 
affixed wall sign, and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. This amendment does not allow a sandwich 
board sign. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
15.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Conditional Use Permit filed by Austin Pier Services Inc., applicant 
  Darrell Frederick, for the owner Peggy Roth Trust 837 Bayview Drive located in the Estate Residential (ER-1) 

zoning, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to construct a new Pier for George & Peggy Roth located at 837 Bayview 
Drive. Tax Key No. ZGR00007. 

 Tyler Frederick recused himself from this agenda item. Planner Slavney presented the request, noting the Plan 
Commission reviews pier requests in addition to the DNR review. The proposed facilities meet our pier and setback 
requirements. Slavney recommends approval of the CUP contingent on the DNR approval. 

 
Kupsik/Hill motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Kupsik/Skates motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne voting “yes.” Frederick abstained.  Motion carried.  
 
 
16.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Conditional Use Permit amending an existing site plan for the  

Farmers Market for the Horticultural Hall located at 330 Broad Street, applicant Sean Payne, 127 Summer 
Street, Genoa City, WI 53128. The proposed site plan to include the use of the public alley located in the 
Central Business (CB) zoning from April to October every Thursday and allow for the sales of homemade, 
home grown products: cheese vegetables, bread, fruit, flowers, hummus, oils, crapes, empanadas, sauces, 
desserts, popcorn, seafood, coffee, and crafts. Tax Key No. ZOP000163. 

 Sean Payne, 127 Sumner, Genoa City, presented the request. Payne clarified the Farmers Market takes place from 
April through October, not to October. Administrator Oborn stated this permit has gone through the Public Works 
Committee due to the ROW and alley which concluded with all staff in agreement. 

 
Hill/Horne motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



5 of 6 
April 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

Hill/Skates motion to approve Conditional Use Permit to include the use of the public alley and include all staff 
recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
17.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Zoning Map Amendment for the property located at 100 North 

Edward Blvd. for TC Productions LLC. The request is to change the current zoning from Planned 
Development (PD) to Planned Business (PB). Tax Key No. ZA196100004. 
Peter Juergens, 2689 Sunset Blvd, on behalf of TC Productions LLC, present the request. Planner Slavney stated this 
request meets requirements of the Planned Business zoning and is consistent with other business zoning along 
Edwards Blvd. and the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Kupsik/ Horne motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Kupsik/Horne motion to approve the Zoning Map Amendment and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
18.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Conditional Use Permit by TC Productions LLC for the property 

located at 100 North Edwards Blvd., to construct a new commercial building to be used as a Commercial 
Indoor Entertainment (Magic Theater) land use classification section 98-206(4)(h). Tax Key No. ZA196100004. 

 Pete Juergens, 2689 Sunset Blvd, on behalf of TC Productions LLC, presented the request. Juergens explained the 
exterior building materials to be used including stone work and horizontal lap siding. The applicant requested a 
change in the building material, from vertical corrugated steel to lap siding, since the ordinance prohibits exposed 
fasteners, which was needed for the corrugated steel installation.  

 
Speaker #1: John Koons, 7243 Lawton Avenue, property owner west of the project location, was concerned about privacy 
and was interested in what will be done with the west side of the site and phase 2 of this project. 
 
Speaker #2: Gary Dunham, 614 Sage Street, also working with applicant, said the future limitations on this site states 
much of the parking lot is necessary for the Magic Theatre and the future tenant size will be limited as well. 
 
Kupsik/Hill motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Hill/Skates motion to approve Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
19.   Public Hearing and Recommendation of a proposed Ordinance Regulating Tourist Rooming Houses /  

Residential Short Term Rentals. 
Planner Slavney summarized the proposed Tourist Rooming House/ Residential Short Term Rentals Ordinance. 
Slavney reiterated the Common Council will set the fees for this Ordinance. 
 
Speaker #1: Doug Wheaton, 1516 N Country Club Pkwy, Elkhorn, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Lakes 
Area Realtors Association, shared support of City regulation but asks the fees to be reasonable. Wheaton also 
requested specific regulations based on other municipalities.  

 
Kupsik/Horne motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Kupsik/Horne motion to approve the proposed ordinance regulating Tourist Rooming Houses/Residential Short Term 
Rentals and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Hill, Horne, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



6 of 6 
April 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

Adjournment.  Hill/Kupsik motion to adjourn at 8:48 pm.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to change the 
exterior façade and install a ½-wall with identical window that are currently on the front building 
locatedat 831 Wrigley DriveStreetTax Key No. ZOP00340. The City reviews all exterior alteration in 
the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the Downtown Design standards, particularly 
quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Sherwin Williams 
color palette. The proposed renovation meets the requirements of the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning 
district as proposed. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the item as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Oakfire Properties LLC. 
831 Wrigley Dr. 
Lake Geneva, WI53147 
 

Request: 
831 Wrigley Dr. 
Downtown Design Review for exterior façade 
change to install a rollup ½-wall windows 
Tax Key No. ZOP00340 

Agenda Item #6 







 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 

This request is for a land division of an existing duplex property with an existing duplex building 
currently located at the above addresses of 530 & 532 Stone Ridge Dr. The applicant is looking 
at the future sale of the property as condominium use sale. 

The parcel included in this Condominium Plat request is: 
Tax Key No. ZSR00066 
 
The result of this land division will create 2individual lots consisting with a properly built -0- lot-
line constructed buildings. 
 

Site Plans Prepared by: Farris, Hansen,& Associates 
Project:  6041.66 
Dated:   03/07/2018 
 

Project Details from Condominium Plat Submittal dated March 19, 2018: 

The proposed land division drawing is provided identifying the 2 lots located on Stone Ridge 
Drive Lane which will divide the parcel equally with adequate street frontage.  

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Condominium Plat Application: 

As part of the consideration of the requested Condominium Plat the Plan Commission is required 
to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CSM. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the CSM as 
submitted. 

Agenda Item:6 

Applicant: 
Judith E. Castleman 
530 Stone Ridge Drive  
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
Condominium Plat land division 
review 530 & 532 Stone Ridge 
Drive Tax Key No. ZSR00066 





















 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a new fence installation 
in the SR-4 Zoning district. The project is requesting to exceed the allowable heights for a fence 
installation on a street side property. The applicants have carefully designed the proposed fence to 
increase size to 48” whereas the maximum allowable fence height of 36” and 60% opaque. 
 

Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed project exceeds the allowable fence heights in the SR-4 Zoning District. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 

The proposed conditional use includes increases in the fence heights, the rendition of the proposed fence 
location on Townline Rd.  

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

Agenda Item: 7 

Applicant: 
Ryan Finley 
805 Cumberland Trail 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
805 Cumberland Trail 
Conditional Use Permit 
Fence Installation in the SR-4 Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZTT00041 



 2

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 



 3

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 
home. 

3. Finally, staff recommends that the following additional condition of approval be attached to the 
approval: 

a. That the location of all approved building setbacks be verified by an on-site inspection by 
the Building Administrator prior to pouring building foundation walls. 

 













 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 

The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to propose a 3 table Sushi, Smoothie,& 
Salad restaurant - primarily a carryout restaurant, in a multi-tenant building located at 239 Cook Street.  

The property is located in the Central Business District. 

No signage or other exterior modifications are being proposed to the building at the time of the 
application.  
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review: 

The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

Agenda Item: 8 

Applicant: 
Renee T. Wu 
527 Forest Glen Dr. 
Fontana, WI 53125 

Request: 
239 Cook Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Proposed Conditional Use Permit for  
Indoor Commercial Entertainment – 
Restaurant 
Tax Key No. ZYUP000253 



 2

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 
and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 



 3

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
3. Staff recommends that no additional conditions of approval be attached. 

 

























 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to utilize the 
property located at723 Geneva Street for the Commercial Indoor Lodging Services land use located in 
the Central Business (CB) zoning district.   
The request is to allow the property owners rent the units out for a rental term of less than 6 days in 
accordance with the Commercial Indoor Lodging.  
 
Project Details from CUP Submittal 
The proposed request of for this use is a permitted land use in the CB zoning if granted the CUP.  

With this request the applicants currently reside in the upper unit as their residence, and are requesting 
that this application is applied to both upper and lower units. As stated the upper is their primary 
residence at this time albeit in the future they wish to have the same opportunity to utilize the dwelling 
as a Commercial Indoor Lodging land use without having to resubmit at a later date. 

Staff Review Comments: 

In speaking with the applicants, it is understood that the process for this request is that the Lower 
unitwill need to have to meet the guidelines for Commercial Indoor Lodging and be applied at the time 
they wish to rent that unit.  

The Upper unit however at the time of this request is exempt from inspections and will remain their 
dwelling but will be required to comply should they move forward with the Commercial Indoor Lodging 
requirements for that unit. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

Agenda Item: 9 

Applicant: 
William & Carol Dick 
723 Geneva St. 
Lake GenevaWI, 53147 

Request: 
723 Geneva Street 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for  
Commercial Indoor Lodging land use in the  
Central Business (CB) Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZOP000185 



 2

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



 3

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 
home. 

3. Finally, staff recommends that the following additional condition of approval be attached to the 
approval: 

a. That the location of all approved building setbacks be verified by an on-site inspection by 
the Building Administrator prior to pouring building foundation walls. 

 















 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to utilize the 
property located as 190 E. Main Street for the In-Vehicle Sales or Services land use located in the 
Planned Business (PB) zoning district.   
The request is to allow the new construction of a Convenience Store, Fuel Station, Car Wash, and 
Dunkin Donut store.  
 
Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed request of In-Vehicle Sales or Services land use is allowed in the (PB) zoning district with 
the issuance of a CUP. The applicants have met with staff and are requesting the review of the request 
with the understanding that final utility engineering will be conducted in the consideration of the 
positive motion by the Plan Commission. This will allow the application to submit final engineering to 
the City Engineer and Utility Department at a later date understanding “no permits” will be issued 
without first being approved by City Staff. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 

In speaking with the applicants, it is understood by the applicants, that the process for the request is to 
get the approval for the Conditional Use Permit with the understanding the costly engineering will be 
conducted and submitted after an approval by Lake Geneva. And only then, will the issuance of any 
permits be permitted for the project with the final review and approval by the Lake Geneva Engineering 
staff. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

Agenda Item: 10 

Applicant: 
Lake Geneva Plaza LLC 
W3323 Lake Forest Dr. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
190 E Main Street 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for  
In-vehicle Sales or Services land use in the  
Planned Business (PB) Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZA370600001 



 2

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



 3

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 
home. 

3. Finally, staff recommends that the following additional condition of approval be attached to the 
approval: 

a. That the location of all approved building setbacks be verified by an on-site inspection by 
the Building Administrator prior to pouring building foundation walls. 

 

















































 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for the new construction of a 5 story 92 unit Hampton Inn to be 
located at the south east portion of the intersection of N. Edwards Blvd and Sheridan Springs Rd.  

The applicants have met with staff for this land use of Commercial Indoor Lodging land use to occur at 
this location for the consideration of the requestedin the General Development Plan (GDP).The 
requested GDP zoningapproval will allow for the construction of the Hotel adjacent to the current 
Geneva Square property. 

Staff has met with the applicants and their considerations of, building exterior materials, and site access, 
and storm water detention. 

The city engineer has been in contact with the designer for storm water designs and requests the motion 
include the statement as contingent on the final staff approval of the storm water designs. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 
Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including General Development Plans) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. The proposed 
GDP zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning 
standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. All other zoning requirements of the current 
GDP remain. 

Action by the Plan Commission:  

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / GDP: 

As part of the consideration of a requested Planned Development / General Development Plan (GDP) 
step, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

Agenda Item: 11 

Applicant: 
1111 N. Edwards Blvd LLC 
1111 N. Edwards Blvd 
Lake GenevaWI, 53147 

Request: 
Hampton Inn 
General Development Plan (GDP) for 
Commercial Indoor Lodging land use in the  
Planned Industrial (PI) Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZA468000003 & ZA468000004 



 2

Staff Review Comments: 

The proposed GDP applicants have met with staff and have provided the information and plan to support 
the requested GDP.  

Planning staff supports the requested flexibilities. Approval of this proposed GDP does not set legal 
precedent. 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to Common Council: 
A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2, of the 
following. 

1. The proposed GDP furthers the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

2. One or more of the following factors have arisen that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

Or: 
 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3 of the following: 

1. The proposed GDP does not furtherthe purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

2. One or more of the following factors have not arisen that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 



 3

Staff Recommendation on the General Development Plan: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the GDP as submitted, 
including the granting of the requested zoning ordinance flexibilities. 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting thatthe proposal meets 
Factor3.  Specifically, the proposalmaintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

3. Staff recommends that Plan Commission’s recommendation is that storm water approval be 
contingent on review and satisfaction of the city engineer.  

 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 1 
 

 
 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

HAMPTON INN 

LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN, 

A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OF  

1111 N EDWARDS BLVD LLC 

 
 May 10, 2018 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 2 
 

General Development Plan Introduction 
 
This General Development Plan (“GDP”) concerns two vacant parcels of 

land, totaling approximately 2.468 acres, more particularly described in the attached 
Exhibit A incorporated herein and depicted on the City of Lake Geneva (“City”) Land 
Use Plan Map and an aerial photograph attached as Group Exhibit B hereto and 
incorporated herein, intended by Applicant, 1111 N Edwards Blvd LLC, a Wisconsin 
limited liability company, for the development and operation of a Hampton Inn (“Site”). 
 

The Site is located in the northeast corner of the City, at the southeast 
corner of the intersection of Sheridan Springs Road and the north terminus of North 
Edwards Boulevard.  The Site is bounded as follows: 
 

North - The USH 12/STH 120 interchange and shopping center 
East - The right-of-way for USH 12  
South - Existing undeveloped land  
West - Existing undeveloped land and shopping center  
 

Access to the Site will be from two driveways on North Edwards 
Boulevard.   

 
The principal building on the Site will be approximately 65 feet in height, 

five floors, with 92 single room and suite units of varying sizes, breakfast area facilities, a 
fitness center, an indoor pool, a meeting room, and related motel facilities.  The 
Hampton Inn franchise is premium-ranked in the industry.  

 
The economic advantages of the Hampton Inn to the City are substantial.  

The construction of the improvements on the Site will employ about 160 workers. The 
cost of the completely constructed and equipped Hampton Inn is budgeted at 
approximately $11,351,000.00.  The estimated annual general real estate taxes generated 
by the improvements will be approximately $232,675.00 at current tax rates. Once 
operational, the Hampton Inn is estimated to generate room sales tax for the City of about 
$307,236.00 annually, using the 8.5% room sales tax rate.  When operational, the 
Hampton Inn will employ about 20 full-time and 15 part-time employees, most expected 
to live in the Lake Geneva area.  Once operational, total annual salaries paid to such 
employees are estimated at about $469,892.00 initially.  

 
 The Site is zoned PI, Planned Industrial.  Applicant proposes 

rezoning to a planned development (“PD”) of the Site, using the Planned Business 
District as the base zoning district, with the grant of the conditional use of Commercial 
Indoor Lodging, which is a conditional use under the Planned Business District.   

 
General Development Plan: 
 

1. Location map of the Site on the City of Lake Geneva Land Use Plan 
Map:  See Group Exhibit B. 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 3 
 

 
2. Map of Site with lands, including zoning, and owners, including names 

and addresses, within 300 feet of the boundaries of the Site:  See Group Exhibit C 
incorporated herein. 

 
3. General written description of the proposed PD including: 
 

   a. General project themes and images:  The Hampton Inn 
franchisor sets standards for a franchisee, including building appearance.  Applicant has 
incorporated suggestions from City staff into Applicant’s franchisor-approved exterior 
plans and specifications.  See the Site Plan attached as Exhibit D and incorporated 
herein, the Floor Plans attached as Group Exhibit E, and the Elevations & Renderings 
attached as Group Exhibit F and incorporated herein.    
 
   b. General mix of land uses:  The Site is planned for use as a 
Hampton Inn and its related requirements and uses, such as parking lot, storm water 
management system, and other facilities. 
 
   c. Approximate non-residential intensities as described by floor 
area ratio and impervious surface area ratio: The Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is 
.30.  Applicant requests a maximum FAR of .45.  
 
   d. General treatment of natural features:  Much of the Site will be 
improved, with the Hampton Inn building, the parking lot, the storm water management 
system, and other facilities taking considerable area.  However, landscaping will be 
maintained in accordance with the zoning standards for the Site.  Note that the Site is not 
in a Primary Environmental Corridor or in the watershed for Geneva Lake; any storm 
water draining from the Site to the White River will enter the river east of the outflow 
control gates from Geneva Lake, and will meet all applicable water quality standards. 
 
   e. General relationship to nearby properties and public streets:  
The Site, as a Hampton Inn, is an appropriate use for the area, given the surrounding USH 
12 and North Edwards Boulevard, and the Site’s proximity to the interchange of USH 12 
and STH 36/120. The only developed neighboring property, the Geneva Square shopping 
center northwest of the Site, is also a commercial use and, in any event, is oriented toward 
USH 12 and the interchange, away from the Site.    
   
   The City has recently adopted a Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, which 
includes planned bicycle paths on Sheridan Springs Road and North Edwards Boulevard 
that meet at the intersection of such streets.  See the Site Plan for the approximate 
location of bike racks that Applicant proposes to purchase, install and maintain on the 
Site, to assist bicyclists riding the paths. 
 

 f. General relationship of the project to the Master Plan:  Under 
the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan, the Site is part of a “Planned Mixed Use Area,” 
which includes the Planned Business District. No amendment of the Comprehensive 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 4 
 

Master Plan is required, because Applicant asks to use the Planned Business District as 
the base zoning district of this GDP.   

 
   g. Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed: Most 
of the flexibilities requested below result from the Site’s shape and location.  The Site, 
while almost 2.5 acres, is narrow and triangular in shape, making setbacks, for example, 
especially difficult.  Additionally, the Site’s location, relatively isolated from the rest of 
the City, with no nearby residential development, and no commercial development but for 
Geneva Square shopping center, makes it appropriate for many of the flexibilities 
requested under this GDP.  The Site is particularly appropriate for a Hampton Inn, given 
its proximity to USH 12, the interchange with USH 12 and STH 36/120, North Edwards 
Boulevard, and Sheridan Springs Road. 
     
   h. Zoning standards which will and will not be met by the proposed 
PD: If the Site is zoned PD with a Planned Business base district, the Site will need the 
following Planned Business District uses thereunder and will meet the following Planned 
Business District standards: 
 
i. Land Uses Permitted by Right: (per Section 98-202(2)) 
Selective Cutting (per Section 98-206(2)(f)) 
Passive Outdoor Public Recreation (per Section 98-206(3)(a)) 
Indoor Institutional (per Section 98-206(3)(c)) 
Public Services and Utilities (per Section 98-206(3)(e)) 
 
ii. Land Uses Permitted as Conditional Use: (per Section 98-202(4)) 
Clear Cutting (per Section 98-206(2)(g)) 
Commercial Indoor Lodging (per Section 98-206(4)(k)) 
 
iii. Land Uses Permitted as Accessory Uses: (per Section 98-202(5)) 
Land Uses Permitted by Right: 
On-Site Parking Lot (per Section 98-206(8)(n)) 
Drainage Structure (per Section 98-206(8)(r)) 
Filling (per Section 98-206(8)(s)) 
Lawn Care (per Section 98-206(8)(t)) 
Exterior Communication Devices (per Section 98-206(8)(v)) 
Land Uses Permitted as Conditional Use: None (Accessory). 
 
iv. Land Uses Permitted as Temporary Uses: (per Section 98-202(6)) 
Contractor's Project Office (per Section 98-206(9)(c)) 
Contractor's On-Site Equipment Storage (per Section 98-206(9)(d)) 
Relocatable Building (per Section 98-206(9)(e)) 
 
   If the Site is zoned PD with a Planned Business base district, the 
Site will meet many of the following Planned Business District standards.  For those 
standards that the Site will not meet, Applicant requests the listed flexibilities from them: 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 5 
 

 
Regulations Applicable to Nonresidential Uses: 
Nonresidential Intensity Requirements:  
Maximum Number of Floors (F): 4.  Applicant requests flexibility to allow 5 floors, and 
a maximum building height of approximately 65 feet, not 45 feet, given the size, shape 
and location of the Site, the need for parking, the storm water management system, and 
other facilities thereon, and the requisite number of units for the Site.  The Site is 
relatively isolated, with major highways and roadways surrounding it.  There are no 
nearby residential properties for which views will be significantly affected, the closest 
being Stone Ridge Subdivision, which is located northwest of the Site, outlets on Center 
Street, is built on a hill higher than the Site, with the Site not in the line of sight between 
the subdivision and Geneva Lake.  The building will use a flat roof, rather than a pitched 
roof, to minimize its height.  A four foot-high parapet around the roof will screen any 
necessary mechanical equipment and vents from view, particularly at street level.  As a 
hotel-motel, greater ceiling height is needed, particularly for the first floor, to 
accommodate amenities such as the breakfast area facilities, the fitness center, the indoor 
pool, and the meeting room.  The Applicant will install water pressure boosting 
equipment if required for fire suppression or other water needs to serve the building. See 
Group Exhibit F for a rendering of the building from USH 12, illustrating that the Site, 
well below the pavement on USH 12, diminishes the perceived height of the building to 
passersby on USH 12. 
Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 25%.  Applicant requests an LSR of 
approximately 42%, based on the ratio of 44,619 square feet to 107,506.08 square feet.  
Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR): .30.  Applicant requests a maximum FAR of .45, 
based on the ratio of 46,100 square feet to 107,506.08 square feet. The LSR and FAR are 
based on a gross building area of 58,440 square feet, total area of 107,506.08 square 
feet, a building footprint of 12,340 square feet, and upper floors of 11,525 square feet. 
Minimum Lot Area (MLA): 20,000 square feet 
Maximum Building Size (MBS): Not applicable 
 
Nonresidential Bulk Requirements: 
a) Minimum Lot Area: 20,000 square feet 
b) Minimum Lot Width: 100 feet; Minimum Street Frontage: 50 feet 
c) Minimum Setbacks:  
i) Building to Front or Street Lot Line: 25 feet, 40 feet for a lot adjacent to a street with an 
Officially Mapped right-of-way equal to or exceeding 100 feet.   Applicant requests 
flexibility for the Site to reduce the street yard setbacks from 40 feet from the 
rights-of-way for USH 12, Sheridan Springs Road, and North Edwards Boulevard, as 
shown on the Site Plan.  The Site is narrow and triangular in shape, and a 40 foot 
setback from each boundary of the Site would leave too little of the Site for development, 
including building, parking, storm water management system, and other facilities.  
ii) Building to Nonresidential Side Lot Line: 10 feet or 0 feet on zero lot line side.  Not 
applicable, because all three sides of the Site are bounded by public streets or highways, 
subject to the street yard setback of 40 feet, from which flexibility is requested above. 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 6 
 

iii) Building to Nonresidential Rear Lot Line: 30 feet.  Not applicable, because all three 
sides of the Site are bounded by public streets or highways, subject to the street yard 
setback of 40 feet, from which flexibility is requested above.   
d) Peripheral Setback: Along zoning district boundary:  With the base Planned Business 
zoning district, the surrounding zoning districts of Planned Industrial and Planned 
Development-Commercial appear to impose no peripheral setback. 
e) Minimum Paved Surface Setback: 5 feet from side or rear; 10 feet from street.  
Applicant requests that the minimum paved surface setback from the North Edwards 
Boulevard right-of-way be reduced from 10 feet to 3 feet, particularly around the south 
access point to the Site, given the narrowness of the Site.  
f) Minimum Building Separation: 20 feet or 0 feet on zero lot line side. 
g) Maximum Building Height: 45 feet.  Applicant requests flexibility to allow 5 floors, 
and a maximum building height of approximately 65 feet, not 45 feet, given the size, 
shape and location of the Site, the need for parking, the storm water management system, 
and other facilities thereon, and the requisite number of units for the Site.  The Site is 
relatively isolated, with major highways and roadways surrounding it.  There are no 
nearby residential properties for which views will be significantly affected, the closest 
being Stone Ridge Subdivision, which is located northwest of the Site, outlets on Center 
Street, is built on a hill higher than the Site, with the Site not in the line of sight between 
the subdivision and Geneva Lake.  The building will use a flat roof, rather than a pitched 
roof, to minimize its height.  A four foot-high parapet around the roof will screen any 
necessary mechanical equipment and vents from view, particularly at street level.  As a 
hotel-motel, greater ceiling height is needed, particularly for the first floor, to 
accommodate amenities such as the breakfast area facilities, the fitness center, the indoor 
pool, and the meeting room.  The Applicant will install water pressure boosting 
equipment if required for fire suppression or other water needs to serve the building. See 
Group Exhibit F for a rendering of the building from USH 12, illustrating that the Site, 
well below the pavement on USH 12, diminishes the perceived height of the building to 
passersby on USH 12. 
Minimum Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces Required on the Lot:  98 stalls, 
including 4 ADA stalls   
 
Nonresidential Landscaping Requirements (Nonresidential, Two- & Multi-family): 
1) 40 landscaping points per 100 linear ft. of building foundation 
2) 10 landscaping points per 1,000 square ft. of gross floor area 
3) 40 landscaping points per 100 linear feet of street frontage 
4) 80 landscaping points per 10,000 square ft. paved area/20 stalls 
See Conceptual Landscaping Plan, Exhibit H 
 
Nonresidential Performance Standards:  Under 98-702(6), on an arterial or 
nonresidential collector street, no access point can be closer than one hundred (100) feet 
from the intersection of any two street rights-of-way unless such street is the only 
available frontage on the property.  The north access point to the Site on North Edwards 
Boulevard is approximately 100 feet from the intersection of North Edwards Boulevard 
and Sheridan Springs Road.  Applicant requests flexibility to locate the north access 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 7 
 

point as shown on the Site Plan to align the driveway properly with the porte cochere and 
the lobby entrance to the Hampton Inn. 
 
Nonresidential Signage Regulations:  See Signage Plan, Exhibit I.  
 
   i. Description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the underlying zoning district, in the following order: 
    1. Land Use Exemptions:  None. 
    2. Density and Intensity Exemptions:   
Maximum Number of Floors (F): 4. Applicant requests flexibility to allow 5 floors, and a 
maximum building height of approximately 65 feet, not 45 feet, given the size, shape and 
location of the Site, the need for parking, the storm water management system, and other 
facilities thereon, and the requisite number of units for the Site.  The Site is relatively 
isolated, with major highways and roadways surrounding it.  There are no nearby 
residential properties for which views will be significantly affected, the closest being 
Stone Ridge Subdivision, which is located northwest of the Site, outlets on Center Street, 
is built on a hill higher than the Site, with the Site not in the line of sight between the 
subdivision and Geneva Lake.  The building will use a flat roof, rather than a pitched 
roof, to minimize its height.  A four foot-high parapet around the roof will screen any 
necessary mechanical equipment and vents from view, particularly at street level.  As a 
hotel-motel, greater ceiling height is needed, particularly for the first floor, to 
accommodate amenities such as the breakfast area facilities, the fitness center, the indoor 
pool, and the meeting room.  The Applicant will install water pressure boosting 
equipment if required for fire suppression or other water needs to serve the building. See 
Group Exhibit F for a rendering of the building from USH 12, illustrating that the Site, 
well below the pavement on USH 12, diminishes the perceived height of the building to 
passersby on USH 12. 
Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 25%.  Applicant requests an LSR of 
approximately 42%, based on the ratio of 44,619 square feet to 107,506.08 square feet.  
Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR): .30.  Applicant requests a maximum FAR of .45, 
based on the ratio of 46,100 square feet to 107,506.08 square feet. The LSR and FAR are 
based on a gross building area of 58,440 square feet, total area of 107,506.08 square 
feet, a building footprint of 12,340 square feet, and upper floors of 11,525 square feet. 
    3. Bulk Exemptions:   
Minimum Setbacks:  
Building to Front or Street Lot Line: 25 feet, 40 feet for a lot adjacent to a street with an 
Officially Mapped right-of-way equal to or exceeding 100 feet.   Applicant requests 
flexibility for the Site to reduce the street yard setbacks from 40 feet from the 
rights-of-way for USH 12, Sheridan Springs Road, and North Edwards Boulevard, as 
shown on the Site Plan.  The Site is narrow and triangular in shape, and a 40 foot 
setback from each boundary of the Site would leave too little of the Site for development, 
including building, parking, storm water management system, and other facilities.  
Minimum Paved Surface Setback: 5 feet from side or rear; 10 feet from street.  Applicant 
requests that the minimum paved surface setback from the North Edwards Boulevard 
right-of-way be reduced from 10 feet to 3 feet, particularly around the south access point 
to the Site, given the narrowness of the Site.     



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 8 
 

Maximum Building Height: 45 feet.  Applicant requests flexibility to allow 5 floors, and 
a maximum building height of approximately 65 feet, not 45 feet, given the size, shape 
and location of the Site, the need for parking, the storm water management system, and 
other facilities thereon, and the requisite number of units for the Site.  The Site is 
relatively isolated, with major highways and roadways surrounding it.  There are no 
nearby residential properties for which views will be significantly affected, the closest 
being Stone Ridge Subdivision, which is located northwest of the Site, outlets on Center 
Street, is built on a hill higher than the Site, with the Site not in the line of sight between 
the subdivision and Geneva Lake.  The building will use a flat roof, rather than a pitched 
roof, to minimize its height.  A four foot-high parapet around the roof will screen any 
necessary mechanical equipment and vents from view, particularly at street level.  As a 
hotel-motel, greater ceiling height is needed, particularly for the first floor, to 
accommodate amenities such as the breakfast area facilities, the fitness center, the indoor 
pool, and the meeting room.  The Applicant will install water pressure boosting 
equipment if required for fire suppression or other water needs to serve the building. See 
Group Exhibit F for a rendering of the building from USH 12, illustrating that the Site, 
well below the pavement on USH 12, diminishes the perceived height of the building to 
passersby on USH 12. 
    4. Nonresidential Performance Standards: 
Access Point to Intersection:  Under 98-702(6), on an arterial or nonresidential 
collector street, no access point can be closer than one hundred (100) feet from the 
intersection of any two street rights-of-way unless such street is the only available 
frontage on the property.  The north access point to the Site on North Edwards 
Boulevard is approximately 100 feet from the intersection of North Edwards Boulevard 
and Sheridan Springs Road.  Applicant requests flexibility to locate the north access 
point as shown on the Site Plan to align the driveway properly with the porte cochere and 
the lobby entrance to the Hampton Inn. 
 
Minimum Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces Required on the Lot:  98 stalls, 
including 4 ADA stalls 
    5. Landscaping Exceptions:  None. 
 
    6. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions: None. 
  

4. A General Development Plan Drawing (“GDP Drawing”) showing at 
least the following: 
   a. Conceptual plan drawing of the general land use layout and the 
general location of major public streets and/or private drives.  See GDP Drawing 
attached as Exhibit G and incorporated herein. 
 
   b. Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities, 
specifically those dedicated for public acquisition and use:  The City has recently 
adopted a Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, which includes planned bicycle paths on Sheridan 
Springs Road and North Edwards Boulevard that meet at the intersection of such streets.  
See the Site Plan for the approximate location of bike racks that Applicant proposes to 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 9 
 

purchase, install and maintain on the Site, to assist bicyclists riding the paths.  Beyond 
such assistance, none of the Site shall be dedicated to public acquisition and use.   
 
   c. Statistical data on density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface area 
ratio, expected staging, and any other plans required by the Plan Commission or Common 
Council; and 
  
   d. notations relating the written information above to specific areas 
on the GDP Drawing. 
 

5. General conceptual landscaping plan for the Site noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the compliance of 
development with all landscaping requirements of this Chapter (except as noted in the 
listing of exceptions) and the use of extra landscaping and bufferyards:  See Conceptual 
Landscaping Plan attached as Exhibit H and incorporated herein  

 
6. General signage plan, including all project identification signs and 

concepts for public fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which vary from City standards or common practices.  See 
General Signage Plan attached as Exhibit I and incorporated herein. 

  
  7. Written justification for Planned Development: 
 
   a. The Planned Development in general is in harmony with the 
Comprehensive Master Plan and the Zoning Ordinance:  The Comprehensive Master 
Plan has designated certain areas of the City as “Planned Mixed Use Area,” which 
includes the Planned Industrial District and the Planned Business District.   
 
   b. The Planned Development in its specific location is in harmony 
with the Comprehensive Master Plan and the Zoning Ordinance:  The Site is part of a 
“Planned Mixed Use Area,” which includes the Planned Business District.  The Planned 
Business District includes among its conditional uses Commercial Indoor Lodging, for 
hotel/motel use.  No amendment of the Comprehensive Master Plan is required, because 
Applicant asks to use the Planned Business District as the base zoning district of this 
GDP.  
 
   c.  The Planned Development does not result in a substantial or 
undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either now exist or in the future:  The Site is relatively isolated, surrounded by major 
highways and roadways and largely undeveloped property, with no nearby residential 
development, and no commercial development but for Geneva Square shopping center, 
which is oriented toward USH 12 and the interchange of USH 12 and STH 36/120.  The 
Site is not in a Primary Environmental Corridor or in the watershed for Geneva Lake; any 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 10 
 

storm water draining from the Site to the White River will enter the river east of the 
outflow control gates from Geneva Lake, and will meet all applicable water quality 
standards.  Traffic entering and exiting the Site will be light and spread out largely 
throughout the day.  All parking will be on the Site.  Rights-of-way surrounding the Site 
are in excess of 100 feet in width. Direct access from the Site to USH 12 is prohibited.  
Direct access from the Site to Sheridan Springs Road is not requested.   
 
   d. The Planned Development maintains the desired consistency of 
land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the Site and its 
surroundings:  The Hampton Inn is a use for the Site envisioned under the City’s 
Comprehensive Master Plan.  The requested flexibilities can be granted under the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance, especially given the size, shape and location of the Site.  The Site is 
particularly appropriate for a Hampton Inn, given its proximity to USH 12, the 
interchange with USH 12 and STH 36/120, North Edwards Boulevard, and Sheridan 
Springs Road.  
 
   e. The Planned Development is located in an area that will be 
adequately served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, 
facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies serving the Site.  The roads are 
more than adequate, the utilities are at the lot line of the Site, and the required capacity 
for utilities and other services to serve a Hampton Inn will be less than most industries for 
which the Site is currently zoned.   
 
   f. The potential public benefits of the Planned Development 
outweigh all potential adverse impacts of the Planned Development.  The Hampton Inn 
will provide a considerable economic benefit to the City and its residents, in the form of 
general real estate and room taxes, employment for construction and operation, and a 
motel that is premium class in its industry.  The Hampton Inn can put the proximity of 
the Site to USH 12, the interchange with USH 12 and STH 36/120, North Edwards 
Boulevard, and Sheridan Springs Road, to better use than almost any other.  Finally, the 
Hampton Inn can put the Site, a narrow, triangular-shaped, relatively isolated property 
owned by the City to its highest and best use, converting it from tax-exempt to 
revenue-producing.   
 
  Applicant respectfully requests that the City grant the GDP, pursuant to 
this Application, subject to such reasonable conditions as the City may impose.         

 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 11 
 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE 

 
Lot 3 and Lot 4 of Certified Survey Map No. 4680 recorded October 13, 2016 in Volume 
31 of Certified Surveys on Page 28 as Document No. 934194, and being part of the 
Northwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 and 
Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all in Section 30, Township 2 North, Range 18 East, 
City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin. 
 
Tax Key No. ZA468000003 and ZA 468000004 
 
Address: Vacant Lots, 1111 North Edwards Boulevard 

 



T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 12 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT B 
 

CITY LAND USE PLAN MAP AND  
AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

 
 

See attached. 







T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 13 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT C 
MAP OF SITE & 

OWNERS WITHIN 300 FEET 
 
  See attached. 





T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 14 
 

EXHIBIT D 
SITE PLAN 

 
  See attached. 





T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 15 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT E 
FLOOR PLANS 

 
  See attached. 









T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 16 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT F 
ELEVATIONS & RENDERINGS 

 
  See attached. 
 











T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 17 
 

EXHIBIT G 
GDP DRAWING 

 
  See attached. 





T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 18 
 

EXHIBIT H 
CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPING PLAN 

 
  See attached. 





T:\C\Chief Waubonsie\Purchase from City\off copy\GDP-5.docx  Page 19 
 

EXHIBIT I 
GENERAL SIGNAGE PLAN 

 
  See attached. 
 
 
 
 





 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) to amend an existing Planned 
Development for a Condominium development located at Tax Parcel Nos. ZSUM00101 – 
ZSUM001247which is in the vicinity of Lake Geneva Blvd. and Wells St. 
 
No changes are proposed to the site plan or building exterior other than the reduction in units per acre.  
 

Because this site is zoned as a Planned Development, a change of land use or land division involves 
review and approval of a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) amendment.  

The PIP focuses primarily on the detailed physical characteristics of the site such as the precise locations 
of all development, landscaping, parking, and building materials. It also allows for flexibilities from the 
zoning ordinance relating to site plan components. This report focuses on these issues. 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning 
standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. In this instance, the Planned Development 
(PD) zoning district, a prevalent zoning district in the surrounding area, provides that comparison zoning 
district. As no changes are proposed to the site that would change the existing site plan, no flexibilities 
are requested. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested Planned Development / Precise Implementation Plan step, 
the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Agenda Item: 12 

Applicant: 
McMurr I LLC. 
351 W. Hubbard Suite 610 
Chicago IL 60654 

Request: 
Summerhaven Third Amendment to a Precise 
Implementation Plan (PIP) 
Tax Parcel Nos. ZSUM00101 – 
ZSUM001247 
 



 2

Staff Review Comments: 

Staff believes that this is a suitable request for an amendment to the land use due to the surrounding 
commercial land uses and zoning. The site is planned for Planned Neighborhood in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  

The applicant is reminded that future changes to the site plan or on-site operational characteristics will 
likely require an amendment to the approved GPD and/or PIP. Staff recommends approving the request 
to amend the PIP. 
 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be for all of the following: 

1. In general, the proposed PIP is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or 
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed PIP is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies 
and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed PIP in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does not 
result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed PIP maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land 
use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed PIP is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an 
undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed PIP outweigh all potential adverse impacts of the 
proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommends approval of the PIP as submitted. 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting that the proposal is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map which proposes that the only 
change is the reduction of units per acre to existing development intensity and bulk 
characteristics; and will be complementary to surrounding land uses. 







Applicant/Petitioner agrees that in addition to those normal costs payable by an 
applicant/petitioner (e.g., filing or permit fees, publication expenses, recording fees, etc.), that in 
the event the action applied or petitioned for requires the City of Lake Geneva, in the judgment 
of its staff, to obtain additional professional service(s), (e.g., engineering, surveying, planning, 
legal) than would be routinely available "in house" to enable the City to properly address, take 
appropriate action on, or determine the same, applicant/petitioner shall reimburse the City for the 
costs thereof 

Section 98-935 Fees: 

(1) Fees for Procedures or Permits Requested by a Private Party: The fees for the
procedures and permits established by this Chapter shall be established by resolution of the 
Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva  

(2) Fees for Procedures Requested by the City of Lake Geneva: There shall be no fee in
the case of applications filed in the public interest by the Common Council or the Plan 
Commission, other agency, or official of the City of Lake Geneva.  

(3) Payment of Fees: Fees shall be payable at the time applications are filed with the
appropriate officer of the City (per the requirements of this Chapter), and are not refundable. 

(4) Professional Consultant Review Services: The City may retain the services of
professional consultants (including planners, engineers, architects, attorneys, environmental 
specialists, recreation specialists, and other experts) to assist in the City's review of a proposal 
coming before the Plan Commission. The City may apply the charges for these services to the 
Petitioner. The City will require the Petitioner to sign a professional consultant review services 
form. The City Administrator at any time may require an applicant to submit an advance deposit 
of $500 to $5,000 depending on the complexity and anticipated involvement of the City’s 
consultants or continuing advance deposits against future billings by the City for recovery of 
costs provide by this ordinance 98-935(4).  An advanced deposit shall be required for the 
application related to Extraterritorial matters. The City may delay acceptance of the 
application or petition as complete, or may delay final approval of the proposal, until such fees 
are paid by the Petitioner. The submittal of a development proposal application or petition by a 
Petitioner shall be construed as an agreement to pay for such professional review services 
applicable to the proposal. Review fees which are applied to a Petitioner, but which are not paid, 
may be assigned by the City as a special assessment to the subject property. 



APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
PD STEP 4: PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN (PIP) 

Prior to submitting the 20 complete applications as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the 
Applicant shall submit 5 initial draft application packets for staff review, followed by one revised draft 
final application packet based upon staff review and comments. 

Initial Packet (5 Copies to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
  ⇓   Draft Final Packet (1 Copy to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 

⇓ 
____ ____ A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an 

application for the proposed PIP with the Plan Commission.  This submittal 
packet shall contain the following items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning 
Administrator and placing the item on the Plan Commission agenda for PIP 
review. 

____ (1) A location map of the subject property and its vicinity at 11" x 17", as 
depicted on a copy of the City of Lake Geneva Land Use Plan Map; 

____ (2) A map of the subject property
____ Showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 

subject property; 

 for which the PD is proposed: 

____ Referenced to a list of the names and addresses of the owners of 
all lands on said map as the same appear on the current records 
of the Register of Deeds of Walworth County (as provided by 
the City of Lake Geneva); 

____ Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and 
its environs, and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that 
control;  

____ Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier; 
____ Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch 

equals 800 feet; 
____ All lot dimensions of the subject property provided; 
____ Graphic scale and north arrow provided. 

____ (3) A general written description
____ Specific project themes and images; 

 of proposed PIP including: 

____ The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses; 
____ Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as 

described by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and 
impervious surface area ratio; 

____ The specific treatment of natural features; 
____ The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets. 
____ A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed 

identifying perceived barriers in the form of requirements of 
standard zoning districts and opportunities for community 
betterment through the proposed PD zoning. 

____ A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the 
proposed PIP and the location(s) in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met 
by the proposed PIP and the location(s) in which they apply 
shall be identified.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall 



be to provide the Plan Commission with information necessary 
to determine the relative merits of the project in regard to 
private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the 
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design 
flexibility. 

____ (4) A Precise Implementation Plan Drawing

____ A PIP site plan conforming to all requirements of Section 98-
908(3). If the proposed PD is a group development (per 
Section 98-208) also provide a proposed preliminary plat or 
conceptual plat; 

 at a minimum scale of 
1"=100' (and reduced to 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at 
least the following information in sufficient detail: (See following page) 

____ Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities 
specifically describing those that are to be reserved or 
dedicated for public acquisition and use; 

____ Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the 
precise areas of all development lots and pads, 
density/intensity of various parts of the development, floor 
area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface 
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other 
plans required by the Plan Commission or City Council; and 

____ Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific 
areas on the GDP Drawing. 

____ (5) A Property Site Plan
____ A title block which indicates the name, address and phone/fax 

 drawing which includes: 

 number(s) of the current property owner and/or agent(s) 
(developer, architect, engineer, planner) for project; 

____ The date of the original plan and the latest date of revision to the 
plan; 

____ A north arrow and a graphic scale (not smaller than one inch 
 equals 100 feet); 

____ A reduction of the drawing at 11" x 17"; 
____ A legal description of the subject property; 
____ All property lines and existing and proposed right-of-way lines 

 with bearings and dimensions clearly labeled; 
____ All existing and proposed easement lines and dimensions with a 

 key provided and explained on the margins of the plan as to 
 ownership and purpose; 

____ All required building setback lines; 
____ All existing and proposed buildings, structures, and paved areas, 

 including building entrances, walks, drives, decks, patios, 
 fences, utility poles, drainage facilities, and walls; 

____ The location and dimension (cross-section and entry throat) of 
 all access points onto public streets; 

____ The location and dimension of all on-site parking (and off-site 
 parking provisions if they are to be employed), including a 
 summary of the number of parking stalls provided versus  
 required by the Ordinance; 



____ The location and dimension of all loading and service areas on 
 the subject property and labels indicating the dimension of 
 such areas; 

____ The location of all outdoor storage areas and the design of all 
 screening devices; 

____ The location, type, height, size and lighting of all signage on the 
 subject property to include a photometric plan; 

____ The location, height, design/type, illumination power and 
 orientation of all exterior lighting on the subject property – 
 including the clear demonstration of compliance with  
 Section 98-707; 

____ All engineering requirements for utilities, site designs, etc; 
____ The location and type of any permanently protected green space 

 areas; 
____ The location of existing and proposed drainage facilities for 

 storm water; 
____ In the legend, data for the subject property on: 

____ Lot Area; 
____ Floor Area; 
____ Floor Area Ratio (b/a); 
____ Impervious Surface Area; 
____ Impervious Surface Ratio (d/a); 
____ Building Height. 

____ (6) A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying the location, species, 
and installed size of all trees and shrubs.  Include a chart which 
provides a cumulative total for each species, type and required location 
(foundation, yard, street, paved area or bufferyard) of all trees and 
shrubs. 

____ (7) A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of all buildings in 
the PD, including detailed notes as to the materials and colors 
proposed. 

____ (8) A general signage plan including all project identification signs, concepts 
for public fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles 
or street sign faces and/or poles), and group development signage 
themes which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. 

____ (9) A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a 
property owners association, if any; deed restrictions and provisions 
for private provision of common services, if any. 

____ (10) A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the 
proposed PIP with the approved GDP. 

____ (11) A written description of any and all variations between the requirements 
of the applicable PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed PIP 
development; and, 



____ (12) Proof of financing capability pertaining to construction and 
maintenance and operation of public works elements of the proposed 
development. 

FINAL APPLICATION PACKET INFORMATION 
PD STEP 4: PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN (PIP) 

The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits 
per Section 98-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and 
final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  All portions of an approved PD/PIP not fully 
developed within five years of final City Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based 
development shall be permitted.  The City Council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. 

____ Receipt of 5 full scale copies in blueline or blackline 
of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Receipt of 20 reduced (8.5" by 11" text and 11" x 17" graphics) 
copies of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 

____  A digital copy of Final Application Packet shall be emailed to the 
Building and Zoning Department upon submittal deadline.        Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Certification of complete Final Application Packet and 
     required copies to the Zoning Administrator by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Class 2 Legal Notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Class 2 Legal Notice published on _______________ and _______________ by: _____ 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMERHAVEN 
OF  

LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM 
 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO PRECISE 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN (PIP) 

 
Applicant: McMurr II, LLC, 

an Illinois limited liability company 
 

May 9, 2018 
 
  



2 
 

EXHIBIT A 
PIP THIRD AMENDMENT - NARRATIVE 

 
 
  McMurr II, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“McMurr II”), is the 
Successor Declarant of the Summerhaven development (“Summerhaven”) and the owner of 
fifteen (15) of the units in Phase I thereof (“Phase I”) and all the lands comprising 
Summerhaven’s second and third phases.  McMurr II has cleared Summerhaven of the piles of 
broken asphalt resulting from the demolition of a parking lot by an earlier developer, has cleaned 
out the storm water management ponds to restore their capacity, has altered the storm water 
drainage to avoid flooding neighboring property on the north boundary of Summerhaven, and 
has extended Summerhaven Drive to Lake Geneva Boulevard, paving the access for emergency 
vehicles to Summerhaven.    
 
  Phase I, approximately 8.04 acres, more particularly described in the attached 
Exhibit B incorporated herein, is zoned by the City of Lake Geneva (“City”) as PD, Planned 
Development Zoning District, under a Precise Implementation Plan (“PIP”) that has been 
amended in 2014 and in 2017 by McMurr II.  Phase I is under condominium ownership, subject 
to the Declaration of Condominium and the Plat of Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake 
Geneva Condominium, as amended by recorded amendments and addenda thereto (collectively, 
“Summerhaven of Lake Geneva Condominium”).  In Phase I, ten (10) duplex dwellings in five 
(5) buildings have been constructed, as well as three (3) single-family dwellings, with additional 
single-family units under construction.  The public infrastructure (e.g., municipal water and 
sanitary sewer mains) and the private infrastructure (e.g., storm water management system, 
private streets, and public utilities) have been designed and almost fully installed with sufficient 
capacity to accommodate not only the thirty-seven (37) units originally approved for Phase I, 
now reduced to twenty-eight (28) units, but also to accommodate an additional forty-seven (47) 
units originally approved for the second and third phases of Summerhaven.  Under the 2017 
Second Amendment to the PD-PIP for Phase I (“Second Amendment”), McMurr II has 
committed to install the incomplete public and private infrastructure for the balance of Phase I, to 
construct the pool promised by the original developer of Summerhaven, as well as a pool house, 
and to install the final lift of asphalt for the Phase I private roads.   
 
  In planning the completion of such public and private infrastructure construction 
under the Second Amendment, however, McMurr II has learned that the size of the cul-de-sac to 
be constructed at the north terminus of Murray Drive, to be located largely on the real property 
more particularly described in the attached Exhibit C incorporated herein (“Phase II Property”), 
is substantially larger than originally planned and can have no center island, due to state-imposed 
requirements to accommodate emergency vehicles.  The larger cul-de-sac has resulted in the 
reduction of the number of potential units on the Phase II Property from five (5) to four (4) and 
the addition of considerable fill to the Phase II Property.   
 
  The availability of fill and changing plans for the four (4) units potentially to be 
added to the Phase II Property have made the completion of the necessary improvements more 
viable.  Consequently, McMurr proposes this Third Amendment to the PD-PIP for Phase I to 
amend the engineering to complete the public and private infrastructure of Phase I and to 



3 
 

accommodate up to four (4) units on the Phase II Property, if the Phase II Property is so rezoned, 
including, without limitation, the abandonment of the temporary T-turnaround at the current 
north terminus of Murray Drive, the construction of the larger cul-de-sac at the extended north 
terminus of Murray Drive, and the addition of fill to allow such improvements.    
 
  Attached as Exhibit D and incorporated herein is McMurr’s Overall Site Plan 
depicting the extension of Murray Drive to its north terminus in the larger cul-de-sac, and the 
public and private infrastructure for the completion of Phase I and possibly four (4) units on the 
Phase II Property.  Attached as Group Exhibit E and incorporated herein are the Phase I Buildout 
& Phase II Final Engineering Plans.   
 
  Also filed herewith is a First Amendment to the Development Agreement for 
Phase I, to reflect the completion of the public and private infrastructure, the cut off by McMurr 
of multiple public water and sanitary sewer services at the mains therefor in excess of one (1) set 
for each unit, for built and unbuilt units in Summerhaven, the grant of a twenty-five (25) foot-
wide public utility easement to the City along the north boundary of the Phase II Property from 
the west end of the planned cul-de-sac to the west boundary of the Phase II Property, depicted in 
Group Exhibit E, to enable the City to loop public water mains through adjoining properties to 
the north or the west of the Phase II Property.  McMurr will post with the City sufficient bond to 
cover the cost of the final lift and the installation of the remaining public and private 
infrastructure work for Phase I and the Phase II Property. 
 
  A map of Summerhaven, showing all lands within three hundred (300) feet, and a 
list of the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on said map, indicating the current 
zoning of Summerhaven and its environs, and the jurisdiction, is attached as Group Exhibit F and 
incorporated herein.      
 
  Except as modified by this Third Amendment to the PIP for Summerhaven, the 
PIP remains unchanged.  The landscaping, signage, lighting, organizational structure, and the 
consistency of the PIP, as amended hereby, and the GDP, are not materially changed.   
 
  McMurr II believes that this Third Amendment to the PIP will render 
Summerhaven a more viable and improved in-fill development for the City.   
 

T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\3rd amndt- P I\p 1 pip amndt narrative-9.docx  



4 
 

SUMMERHAVEN OF LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM 
EXHIBIT B 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUMMERHAVEN PHASE I 
 
 
Units 101, 103, 107, 109, 112, 116, 126, 202, 204, 207, 208, 209, 210, 215, 216, 217, 221, 223, 
224, 226, 227, 229, 230, 232, 237, 239, 241, 245, and 247 in the Summerhaven of Lake Geneva 
Condominium, created by a "Declaration of Condominium" recorded on March 28, 2007, in the 
Office of the register of Deeds for Walworth County, Wisconsin, as Document No. 704378, 
together with any amendments and/or corrections thereto, and by its Condominium Plat and any 
amendments and/or corrections thereto. Said condominium being located in the City of Lake 
Geneva, County of Walworth, and State of Wisconsin (end of legal description). 
 
Tax Key Numbers: ZSUM 00101, ZSUM 00103, ZSUM 00107, ZSUM 00109, ZSUM 00112, 
ZSUM 00116, ZSUM 00126, ZSUM 00202, ZSUM 00204, ZSUM 00207, ZSUM 00208, ZSUM 
00209, 210, ZSUM 00215, ZSUM 00216, ZSUM 00217, ZSUM 00221, ZSUM 00223, ZSUM 
00224, ZSUM 00226, ZSUM 00227, ZSUM 00229, ZSUM 00230, ZSUM 00232, ZSUM 00237, 
ZSUM 00239, ZSUM 00241, ZSUM 00245, and ZSUM 00247. 
 
 
  



5 
 

SUMMERHAVEN OF LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM 
EXHIBIT C 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – ADJOINING 1.75 ACRE PARCEL 
FOR TURNAROUND – PHASE II 

 
PARCEL 1: THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 36, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH COUNTY 
CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC W, 733.28 FEET 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, R17E); THENCE N 
89DEG 38MIN 40SEC E, 89.98 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 37MIN 23SEC E, 90.50 FEET TO 
THE WEST LINE OF LAKE GENEVA BOULEVARD; THENCE N 01DEG 34MIN 47SEC 
W, 348.82 FEET ALONG SAID BOULEVARD TO THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF WELLS 
STREET; THENCE N 37DEG 55MIN 32SEC W, ALONG SAID STREET, 202.94 FEET; 
THENCE S 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC W, 239.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 00DEG 41MIN 12SEC E, 50.00 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 55MIN 11SEC E, 
134.92 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 31MIN 07SEC W, 24.01 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 12MIN 
03SEC E, 16.91 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 41MIN 15SEC W, 42.80 FEET; THENCE N 
86DEG 27MIN 48SEC W, 126.62 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 58MIN 07SEC W, 199.39 FEET 
TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; THENCE ALONG 
SAID CONDOMINIUM, N 00DEG 11MIN 05SEC W, 6.62 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE, N 
00DEG 47MIN 32SEC W, 187.44 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC E, 389.70 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 76,247 SQUARE FEET (1.75 ACRES) OF 
LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description). 
 
Property Index Number: ZSUM 00001 
  



6 
 

SUMMERHAVEN OF LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM 
EXHIBIT D 

OVERALL SITE PLAN 
 
 
  See attached. 
  





7 
 

SUMMERHAVEN OF LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM 
EXHIBIT E 

PHASE I BUILDOUT & PHASE II FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS 
 
  See attached. 
  























8 
 

SUMMERHAVEN OF LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM 
EXHIBIT F 

PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 300 FEET 
OF SUBJECT PROPERTY - LIST & MAP 

 
 
  See attached. 





Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 

LIST OF NAMES & ADDRESSES WITHIN 300’ OF SUBJECT PARCEL: 
 

A. Lilypots LLC    
 682 S. Wells Street 
 Lake Geneva, WI 53147   
  
B. Lester Synowiec 
 1539 East Marcus Ct 
 Park Ridge, IL 60068 
 
C. McCullough Walworth Properties 

694 Wells St. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
D.  625 Wells Street LLC 

625 Wells St. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
E.  Rausch Family Trust 

34010 Euclid Dr 
Burlington, WI 53105 

 
F.  Moeller Properties VIII LLC 

5100 Eastpark Boulevard, Suite, 2010 
 Madison, WI 53718  
 
G.  Moeller Properties VIII LLC 

5100 Eastpark Boulevard, Suite, 2010 
 Madison, WI 53718 
 
H.  Moeller Properties VIII LLC 

5100 Eastpark Boulevard, Suite, 2010 
 Madison, WI 53718 
 
I. Gurushabad LLC 

1840 Prestwick Drive 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
J.  Molly M. Fine 
               Frederick Michaelis 

204 Lookout Drive 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
K.  John Manna Trust 

Rosa Manna Trust 
61 Arlington Heights Rd 
Elk Grove Village, IL 60007 

L.  David Heidenreich 
Patricia L. Heidenreich 
794 S. Wells St. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
M.  Rita Popelka 

1075 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
N.  Bowman Farms Inc 

2934 Fish Hatchery Road 
Fitchburg, WI 53713 

 
O.  Bowman Farms Inc 

2934 Fish Hatchery Road 
Madison, WI 53713 

 
P.  Bowman Farms Inc 

2934 Fish Hatchery Road 
Madison, WI 53713 

 
Q.  Christopher J. Klockau 

Karen A Klockau 
4310 83rd Ave Ct 
Milan, IL 61264 

 
R.  Christopher J. Winters 

Heather N. Winters 
909 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
S.  Jean-Paul Meyer 

2319 S Hidden Trail Blvd 
Spring Grove, IL 60081 

 
T.  John P Billings 

808 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
U.  Bruce N. Jalosynski 

Joyce A. Jalosynski 
914 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
 



Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 
V.  Bruce N. & Joyce A. Jalosynski 

914 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
W.  Marilyn J. McLaughlin 

PO Box 1334 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
X.  Linda L. Frame 

940 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
Y.  Elmer Hansen 

950 Lake Geneva Blvd 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
Z.  Jeffrey D. Levato 

Erica R. Levato 
915 Bonnie Brae Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AA.  Dorothy M. Philip 

909 Bonnie Brae Ln 
  Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 
AB.  Andrew Wisniewski 

Christine Wisniewski 
301 Oakwood Drive 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AC.  James & Grace Hanny 

311 Oakwood Lane 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AD.  Mark R Moller-Gunderson Trust  
               Mary Ann Moller-Gunderson Trust 

325 Oakwood Lane 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AE.       Jefferson & Madeline Killian 
             333 Oakwood Drive 
              Lake Geneva, Wi. 53147 
 
AF.  Jeffrey M Zukowski 

355 Oakwood Ln. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

 
 
 
AG.  Raj Handa 

Kulwinder Handa 
375 Oakwood Ln. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

AH.  Dustin A & Maria J Dean 
395 Oakwood Ln. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AI.  Marion Rosiak 

Lilija E. Rosiak 
401 Oakwood Ln. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AJ.  Arvanitakis Trust 

425 Oakwood Ln. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AK.  David V. Hettiger 

Georgette P. Hettiger 
445 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AL.  Robert Robinson 

Lori Robinson 
455 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AM.  Gabriel J. Hammerstrom 

470 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AN.  Michael D. Kramp 

Jennifer S. Kramp 
460 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AO.  John E. Baldwin 

450 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AP.  Jane I Tully 

950 Timothy Dr 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

AQ.  Michael A. Woods 
Ruth A. Woods 
949 Timothy Dr 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
 
AR.  Randall W. Sims 

Deborah K. Sims 



Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 

360 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AS.  Dalia Ruzga 

350 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AT.  Richard J. Achondo 

Christina K. Anchondo 
330 Oakwood Lane 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AU. James R. Connors 

Lynn Y. Connors 
320 Oakwood Ln 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AV.  Joseph Esposito 

300 Oakwood Lane 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AW.  Raymond Alois Ring 

Pamela Ann Ring 
951 S. Lakeshore Dr Unit 6 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

AX.  Laura L. Selby 
195 N. Harbor Drive, UT 2705 
Chicago, Il. 60601 

 
AY.  Penelope Roehrer 

951 S. Lakeshore Dr Unit 1 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
AZ.  Alicia M Lanzito 

951 S. Lakeshore Dr Unit 2 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

BA.  Frank R. Serrecchia 
Julie A. Serrecchia 
1423 Vineyard Ln 
Libertyville, IL 60048 

 
BB.  4Square LLC 

951-4 S Lakeshore Dr 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
 
BC.  Garrett C. Schultz 

951 S Lakeshore Dr UT7 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
BD.  Donald & Sandra Stoneberg 

721 S. Curtis 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

BE. Irwin & Lisa Abrams 
101 Westmoreland Dr 
Wilmette, IL 60091 

 
BF.  Brian L. & Gail M. O’Byrn 

3 Jennifer Ct 
Barrington Hills, IL 60010 

 
BG.  Elaine Vlahakis 

David Loomos 
222 N Washington 
Park Ridge, IL 60068 

 
BH.  Joe Porter McLean 

Linda S. McLean 
951 S Lakeshore Dr, Unit 12 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
BI.  Albert J. Hinton Trust 

Geraldine L Hinton Trust 
5701 Longview Dr 
Countryside, IL 60525-3553 

 
BJ.  Albert J. Hinton Trust 

Geraldine L Hinton Trust 
5701 Longview Dr 
Countryside, IL 60525-3553 

 
BK.  Evangelia Travlos 

6335 N. Lawdale 
Chicago, IL 60645 

 
BL.  Mary Kral 

5132 Woodland Avenue 
Western Springs, IL 60558 

 
BM.  Martin A. & Peggy A. Haeger Trust 

1209 Beaver Creek Road 
Chesterfield, MT  63017 

 
BN. Therese M. Boyle 

10356 S Sawyer Ave 
Chicago, IL 60655 

BO.  Martin K & Patricia A Lapointe 
305 Anne Court 
Prospect Heights, IL 60070 

 



Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 
BP.  Daniel T. & Gail A. O’Carroll 

75 Sunset Ave 
Glen Ellyn, IL 60137 

BQ. Mark L. & Karen A. Washack 
11030 S. Keeler 
Oak Lawn, IL 60453 

 
BR. Myra P. Zenke Trust 

130 Commons Dr 
Palos Park, IL 60464 

 
BS.  Anne M. Samyn Trust 

612 N Higland Avenue 
Arlington Heights, IL 60004 

 
BT.  Nancy C. Newbourne 

701 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 2B 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
BU.  Kerrry & Camille Trunkett 

3936 Bordeaux Drive 
Northbrook, Il 60062 

 
BV.  Kristian Kielhofner 

701 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 2D 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
BW.  Scott & Sandy Gerami 

104 Settlers Dr 
Naperville, IL 60565 

 
BX.  Jeffrey A & Edith F Newman 

2180 Oak Hill Drive 
Lisle, IL 60532 

 
BY.  Anthony J. Rucci Trust 

7800 Tillinghast Dr 
Dublin, OH 43017 

 
BZ.  Richard G & Nancy E Schmidt 

1205 Montgomery Ave 
Rosemont, PA 19010 

 
CA.  David M & Lynn F Coon 

701 S. Lakeshore Dr, UT 3C 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

CB.  Mark S. & Rebecca L. Johnson 
285 Willowbrook Dr 
Oswego, IL 60543 

 
CC.   John J Malcolm Trust 

Denise R Malcolm Trust 
6 Lancelot Lane 
Hawthorne Woods, Il 60047 

 
CD. Joseph D & Elenor M Ori  

317 Kathleen Dr 
Park Ridge, IL 60068 

 
CE.  Irving & Linda Segal 

8787 E Mountain View Rd. #1066 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

 
CF.  Marisa Serrato 

750 N Noble Street 
Chicago, IL 60642 

 
CF. Patricia L. Wolter 

703 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 1F 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CH.  Donna Jean & Bryan W. Simon 

453 Raintree Ct # 1F 
Glen Ellyn, IL 60137 

 
CI.  Traci Marnul 

703 South Lakeshore Dr 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CJ.  Donna G Tabrosky Trust 

705 South Lakeshore Dr, Unit 2A 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

CK.  Mary Lynnn Brennan 
705 South Lakeshore Dr, Unit B 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CL.  Karen A House 

8422 163RD Street 
Tinley Park, IL 60487 

 
CM.  Conrad & Roberta Rohatsch 

170 Northwest Highway 
Park Ridge, IL 60068 

 
 
CN.  John Kolakowski 

8029 W Catherine Ave 
Chicago, IL 60656 

 
CO.  William B. Ittner 

705 S. Lakeshore Dr, # 2F 



Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 
CP.  Richard F. & Patricia J. Corn 

2217 Creek Ridge Dr 
Carrollton, TX 75007 

 
CQ.  Barbara A. Hartke Trust 

705 S. Lakeshore Dr, # 2H 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CR.  Diana L. Wilson 

909 S. Dundee Ave 
Barrington, IL 60010 

 
CS.  Joan Faherty 

707 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 3B 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CT.  Valentina Guran Trust 

6161 N. Hoyne Ave 
Chicago, IL 60659 
 

CU.  Mary L. Krutwig 
707 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 3F 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CV.  Marilyn I Ellman 

PO Box 1225 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CW.  Marilyn I Ellman 

PO Box 1225 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
CX.  Richard J Freiberg Trust 

Kerry J Freiberg Trust 
11980 W Pallottine Drive 
Greenfield, Wi. 53228 

 
CY.  Kenneth F. Milici  

5919 48th Ave SW 
Seattle, WA 98136 

 
 
CZ.  Wayne James Tobiasz 

709 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 4E 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

DA. Louise E. Zapfe 
709 Lakeshore Dr, Unit 4-F 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DB.  Helen M. Radloff 

709 S. Lakeshore Drive Unit 4G 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DC.  Bernadine F. Peletz-Fox 

709 S. Lakeshore Drive Unit H 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

DD.  Leigh A. Crowely 
Robert L. Tracey 
0N413 Taylor Drive 

  Geneva, Il 60134 
 
DE.  Gregory D. Howse 

Karen C. Howse 
18655 Forest View Lane 
Lansing, IL 60438 

 
DF.  Jill D. Green Trust 

711 S. Lakeshore Dr, Unit 5E 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DG.  James J & Vickie Polek 

4901 Drendal Rd. 
Downers Grove, IL 60515 

 
DH.  Patricia A. Schroeder Trust 

713 S. Lakeshore Dr, # 6A 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DI.  Mark & Mary Butitta 

2429 S. Alpine Rd 
Rockford, IL 61108 

 
DJ.  John S Ritchie Jr 

728 N. Briar Hill Lane UT 2 
Addison, IL 60101 

 
DK.  Louis M. & Terri L. Lobianco 

821 Forrest View 
Park Ridge, IL 60068 

 
DL. John T. & Jacqueline M. Pytel 

908 Jeremy Ln 
Libertyville, IL 60048 

 
DM.  Anne E. D’Ascanio 

715 S. Lakeshore Dr - # 7B 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 



Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 
DN.  Sharon M Dvorak 

715 S lakeshore Drive UT 7E 
Lakre Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DO.  Ellen M. Liebner Trust 

Mary Ann Tanquary Trust 
411 Ashland Ave 
River Forest, IL 60305 

 
DP.  Schillaci Family Trust 

17811 Bernard Drive 
Orland Park, IL 60467 

 
DQ.  Alan Kupsik 

Chistine Kupsik 
717 S. Lakeshore Dr - #8B 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DR.  Linda Iser Trust 

7912 Trinity Circle 4SE 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

 
DS.  Carol T Wilcox Trust 

Christopher P Beardsley Trust 
717 S Lakeshore Drive 
Lake Geneva, Wi. 53147 

 
DT.  Bruce R. Nelson 

Joan M. Nelson 
11775 Banchary Road 
Belvidere, IL 61008 

 
DU.  Russell D Sabac 

719 S. Lakeshore Drive Unit B 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
DV.  Victoria D Kuk Trust 

8340 W Berwyn Ave 
Chicago, IL 60656 

 
 
 
DW.  John W. Whittington 

Charlotte A. Whittington 
452 Winsor Dr 
Antioch, IL 60002 

 
DX.  Lawrence B Wieland Trust  

Deanna L Wieland Trust 
PO Box 5905 
Sun City West, AZ 85376 

 
DY.  Kenneth A Wiess 

W3276 Hunt Ridge Drive 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

 
DZ.  Suzette Toia 

PO Box 1193 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EA.  Gary S. Piper 

Jadwiga Piper 
9120 Oleander 
Morton Grove, IL 60053 

 
EB. Leszek Synowiec 

1539 E. Marcus Ct 
Park Ridge, IL 60068 

 
EC.  Frederick A. Gahl 

Stacey A. Bresnahan 
661 S. Lakeshore Dr 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

ED.  Barbara M. Brown 
Scott Carlson Brown 
625 S. Lakeshore Dr 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EE.  Talmae LLC 

N3189 Center St 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EF.  Jeffrey G. Buntrock 

Roger D. Hulsebus 
612 Wells St, Suite C 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EG.  Jeffrey G. Buntrock 

Roger D. Hulsebus 
612 Wells St, Suite C 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EH.  Jeffrey G. Buntrock 

Roger D. Hulsebus 
612 Wells St, Suite C 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EI.  William L Tauber 

415 Wells St, Unit 107 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 



Summerhaven Condominium, Addendum No. 3 Farris Hansen Project No.: 8868  04/06/2018 
 
 
EJ.  LLC Gallows 
 N1173 Walworth Road 
 Geno City, WI 53128 
 
EK.  James Paul-Norbert Kramer Trust 
              Karen Ann Kramer Trust 

906 Platt Ave 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
EL.  Taylor-Klewer Enterprises, LLC 

PO Box 384 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 



1 
 

 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is made this 
____ day of    , 2018, between the CITY OF LAKE 
GENEVA, Walworth County, Wisconsin (“City”), and McMurr 
II, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“Developer”). 
 
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the City is a Wisconsin municipal 
corporation, organized and existing pursuant to Wis. Stat. Ch. 62, 
with authority to enter into this Amendment under its zoning and 
annexation ordinances, as well as the general home rule authority 
vested in it under Wisconsin law; and   
 

    WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner, 
successor developer, and successor declarant of certain real 
property located in the City, more particularly described in the 
attached Exhibit A incorporated herein (“Phase I”), and 
commonly known as Summerhaven of Lake Geneva 
Condominium (“Summerhaven”), which is zoned PD, Planned 
Development Zoning District, with an approved General 
Development Plan and a Precise Implementation Plan that has 
been amended three times pursuant to applications submitted by the Developer in 2014, in 
2017, and in 2018, and approved by the City, subject to staff recommendations (“PIP”), to 
permit the development of a condominium single-family and duplex community of up to 
twenty-eight (28) units, with up to ten (10) units in five (5) duplex buildings, and the balance 
of the units in up to eighteen (18) single-family residences.  The public improvements, i.e., the 
sanitary sewer mains and the municipal water mains, for the southern portion of Phase I have 
been constructed, and a substantial portion of the private infrastructure, i.e., the private storm 
water management facilities, other utilities and the private streets (to their surface course), has 
been constructed and installed, as well as five (5) duplex buildings, containing ten (10) 
condominium units, and three (3) single-family condominium units; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the approved first and second amendments to the PIP have 
required the Developer to make certain private improvements as part of Phase I, as specified in 
and pursuant to a certain Development Agreement between the City and the Developer, 
approved May 27, 2014 (“Agreement”); and  

 
Recording Area 

Name and Return Address 
GODFREY, LEIBSLE, BLACKBOURN &  
HOWARTH, S.C.  
354 Seymour Court 
Elkhorn, Wisconsin 53121  

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
Document Name 

 
 
 
 Document Number 

ZSUM 00101, ZSUM 00103, ZSUM 00107, ZSUM 
00109, ZSUM 00112, ZSUM 00116, ZSUM 00126, 
ZSUM 00202, ZSUM 00204, ZSUM 00207, ZSUM 
00208, ZSUM 00209, 210, ZSUM 00215, ZSUM 
00216, ZSUM 00217, ZSUM 00221, ZSUM 00223, 
ZSUM 00224, ZSUM 00226, ZSUM 00227, ZSUM 
00229, ZSUM 00230, ZSUM 00232, ZSUM 00237, 
ZSUM 00239, ZSUM 00241, ZSUM 00245, and 
ZSUM 00247     
                                         
 Parcel Identification Number (PIN) 



2 

 
  WHEREAS, the approved third amendment to the PIP requires the Developer 
to make certain additional public and private improvements (collectively, “Improvements”) as 
part of Phase I and part of certain real property adjacent and contiguous to the north boundary 
of Phase I owned by the Developer, consisting of approximately 1.75 acres, which is more 
particularly described in the attached Exhibit B incorporated herein (“Phase II”), as specified 
in and pursuant to this Amendment; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City and the Developer desire to enter into this Amendment.  
  

   NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Developer enter into this Amendment 
on the date first set forth above, and agree as follows:   

 
 

SECTION 1 
RESTATEMENT OF RECITALS 

 
 1.01 Recitals Incorporated.  The Recitals above are restated in this Amendment by 
reference as if set forth in full herein, and as such constitute agreements by and between the 
parties and made part and parcel of this Amendment and the Agreement.  
 
 

SECTION 2 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 2.03 Required Improvements. Subsection 2.03(b) of the Agreement is hereby 
deleted in its entirety, and the following is substituted in its place: 
 
  (b) Private Summerhaven Streets.  The final lift to the existing private 
streets of Phase I of Summerhaven shall be installed by the Developer within one (1) year after 
the date of this Amendment.  The final lift to the private streets of any subsequent phase of 
Summerhaven shall be installed by the Developer within one (1) year after the completion of 
the construction of the last of the residential structures and their related improvements for the 
subject phase.  Prior to the installation of a final lift, the Developer shall repair all damaged 
road base and replace the surface course as required by the City Engineer.  In conjunction with 
the installation of the final lift in Phase I, the Developer shall construct Murray Drive to its 
north terminus, to its binder course, ending with a cul-de-sac of a size, and without an island, 
as shown in the Plans for the third amendment to the PIP, that meets state standards for 
emergency vehicles.  
 
 2.03 Required Improvements. The following subsections 2.03 (e) and (f) are 
hereby added to the Agreement: 
 
  (e) Sanitary Sewer System.  The Developer shall extend the public sanitary 
sewer Improvements north within the right-of-way for Murray Drive to make adequate sanitary 



3 

sewerage service available to each unit within Phase I and any units that may be approved for 
Phase II.  The size, type, and installation of all sanitary sewers and laterals to street line shall 
be in accordance with the Plans.  The Developer shall cut off multiple public water and 
sanitary sewer services at the mains therefor in excess of one (1) set for each unit, for built and 
unbuilt units in Phase I.  The Developer shall grant to the City a twenty-five (25) foot-wide 
public utility easement along the north boundary of Phase II from the west end of the planned 
cul-de-sac at the terminus of Murray Drive to the west boundary of Phase II to enable the City 
to loop public utilities through adjoining properties to the north or the west of Phase II.  The 
Developer agrees that the City will not accept the public sanitary sewer Improvements for any 
phase until the same have been installed in accordance with the Plans and accepted by the City 
Engineer.   
 
  (f) Public Water Supply Facilities.  The Developer shall extend the public 
water main Improvements north within the right-of-way for Murray Drive to make adequate 
water service available to each unit within Phase 1 and any Phase II.  The size, type, and 
installation of all public water mains proposed to be constructed shall be in accordance with the 
Plans.  The Developer agrees that the City will not accept the public water supply 
Improvements until such Improvements have been installed in accordance with the Plans.   
 
 

SECTION 4 
CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION 

 
  4.12 Add the following as Section 4.12 to the Agreement: 
 
  4.12 Setbacks Verification.  The location of all approved building setbacks 
shall be verified by an on-site inspection by the Building Administrator before building 
foundation walls are poured. 
 
 

SECTION 6 
TIME FOR COMPLETION OF WORK; SECURITY 

  
  6.02 Subsection 6.02 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety, and 
the following is substituted in its place: 
 
  6.02 Bond. An irrevocable standby letter of credit, or a performance and 
payment bond (“Bond”) in form and with terms acceptable to the City will be filed with the 
City prior to construction.  The procedure for filing the Bond shall be as follows:  A Bond 
equal in amount to one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the estimated cost of the 
Improvements shall be issued by a financial institution acceptable to the City, including a 
condition that the Bond cannot be revoked or not renewed upon its expiration unless the 
issuing institution provides the City and the Developer at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice thereof.  The amount of the Bond may be reduced from time to time by the value of the 
Improvements previously completed and fully paid by the Developer.  Should the cost of the 



4 

Improvements prove to be greater than originally anticipated, the surety on the Bond shall be 
immediately supplemented to include such greater costs.  The Bond shall be adequate in 
amount initially to cover the costs of the Improvements under this Amendment, including, 
without limitation, those described under subsections 2.03 (b), (e) and (f), above.  
 
 

SECTION 10 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
  Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Agreement remains in 
full force and effect.  Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same definitions 
assigned to such terms under the Agreement.   
 

(Signature pages follow) 



5 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the 
date first written above. 
 

CITY: 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, a Wisconsin municipal 
corporation 

 
 

By:  
 Thomas Hartz, Mayor 

 
 

Attest:  
 Lana Kropf, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 APPROVAL OF COMMON COUNCIL 
 
  This Amendment was approved by the Common Council of the City of Lake 
Geneva by Resolution dated the ____ day of ________, 2018. 



6 

     DEVELOPER: 
 

 McMURR II, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company 
 
 
     By:           
      Murray S. Peretz, its Manager 
 
           
  
T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\3rd amndt- P I\1st amndt to dvpt agr-3.docx 



 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE I 

 
Units 101, 103, 107, 109, 112, 116, 126, 202, 204, 207, 208, 209, 210, 215, 216, 217, 
221, 223, 224, 226, 227, 229, 230, 232, 237, 239, 241, 245, and 247 in the Summerhaven 
of Lake Geneva Condominium, created by a "Declaration of Condominium" recorded on 
March 28, 2007, in the Office of the register of Deeds for Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
as Document No. 704378, together with any amendments and/or corrections thereto, and 
by its Condominium Plat and any amendments and/or corrections thereto. Said 
condominium being located in the City of Lake Geneva, County of Walworth, and State 
of Wisconsin (end of legal description). 
 
Tax Key Numbers: ZSUM 00101, ZSUM 00103, ZSUM 00107, ZSUM 00109, ZSUM 
00112, ZSUM 00116, ZSUM 00126, ZSUM 00202, ZSUM 00204, ZSUM 00207, ZSUM 
00208, ZSUM 00209, 210, ZSUM 00215, ZSUM 00216, ZSUM 00217, ZSUM 00221, 
ZSUM 00223, ZSUM 00224, ZSUM 00226, ZSUM 00227, ZSUM 00229, ZSUM 00230, 
ZSUM 00232, ZSUM 00237, ZSUM 00239, ZSUM 00241, ZSUM 00245, and ZSUM 
00247. 
 



 

 
EXHIBIT B 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE II 
 
 
PARCEL 1: THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 36, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH 
COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC 
W, 733.28 FEET FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, 
R17E); THENCE N 89DEG 38MIN 40SEC E, 89.98 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 37MIN 
23SEC E, 90.50 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF LAKE GENEVA BOULEVARD; 
THENCE N 01DEG 34MIN 47SEC W, 348.82 FEET ALONG SAID BOULEVARD TO 
THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF WELLS STREET; THENCE N 37DEG 55MIN 32SEC 
W, ALONG SAID STREET, 202.94 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC W, 
239.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S 00DEG 41MIN 12SEC E, 
50.00 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 55MIN 11SEC E, 134.92 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 
31MIN 07SEC W, 24.01 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 12MIN 03SEC E, 16.91 FEET; 
THENCE S 88DEG 41MIN 15SEC W, 42.80 FEET; THENCE N 86DEG 27MIN 48SEC 
W, 126.62 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 58MIN 07SEC W, 199.39 FEET TO THE EAST 
LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; THENCE ALONG SAID 
CONDOMINIUM, N 00DEG 11MIN 05SEC W, 6.62 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE, N 
00DEG 47MIN 32SEC W, 187.44 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC E, 389.70 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 76,247 SQUARE FEET (1.75 
ACRES) OF LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description). 
 
Property Index Number: ZSUM 00001 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 

262-757-8776 
201 BROAD STREET, STE B 
LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 Project Name: 

The Vistas of Lake Geneva 

Location:  

The project is a redevelopment of the remaining lands which were once planned for a senior house 
project. It is 17.26 acres located in the Northwestern section of the City.  It is bordered on the north by 
LaSalle Street, on the west by the Hillcrest Condominium, the south by The Cottages of Lake Geneva 
Condominium, Lake Geneva Hills subdivision, and the Lake Geneva Woodlands condominium, and on 
the east, by Whispering Hills Condominium. It also includes former lots in Oakdale Estates, including the 
vacated Right of Way of Oakdale Street. 

Existing Conditions: 

Currently the property is the remains of the Hillcrest Condominium project.  All the Sewer and Water 
was designed by, constructed under the supervision of, and is currently being maintained by the Utility 
Company.  The Utility Company is currently studying the need to upgrade their system to provide 
adequate water pressure for this area of the City.  This project will be able to use the majority of the 
utilities.  This will be able to add paying customers to help defray the cost of operation, maintenance, 
and sinking cost of these facilities.  The project is expecting to utilize some of the existing storm sewer 
system, with upgrades and piping modifications installed as needed.  The new interior roadway system 
is proposed to be constructed on an outlot, fractionally owned and maintained by the homeowners,  

Proposed improvements: 

 Construction in phases of 40 single family lots and dwelling units. 
 Removal of any existing water and sewer service laterals. 
 Constructing additional roadway system.  Proposed Hilltop Street to be Public Right of Way with 

remaining cul-de-sac drives on land to be owned and maintained by the homeowners. 
 In leu of street sidewalks, constructing a walkway though the project and the open areas. 
 Designing and constructing a Storm Sewer system to meet current City’s standards. 
 Retain approximately 10 acres of ground in common area for open space and private roadway. 
 The wooded area located in the Southwest section will remain wooded and the only construct 

planned for this area will be stormwater and a walking trail. 
 The existing La Salle Street will remain.  Curb and gutter will be added to the south side of the 

pavement, and the roadside ditch will be removed. 
 Existing Landscaping will be updated. 
 Existing land surface will be modified to accommodate the proposed housing units but will not 

be drastically changed. 

 



 

 

262-757-8776 
201 BROAD STREET, STE B 
LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 Stormwater Management facilities will be completed. 
 Landscaping added to existing public Right-of-Way and proposed private roads. 
 Landscape package will be included in each home package. 
 Homes will be predesigned, built and sold by developer. 
 The Developer intends to build homes on all lots prior to sale. 
 Two Model homes will be constructed to market homes and will be sold after the project is 

completed. 

Benefits of PUD: 

 Infill development, does not require converting exiting natural areas to housing. 
 Takes advantage of exiting “in place” utilities. 
 Fills a need for housing for current City’s full-time residents and Lake Geneva workers seeking to 

relocate to the City. 
 Provides additional passive recreational open space for residents  
 Provides additional income to Utility Company without adding additional infrastructure. 
 Increases the tax base of the City. 
 Does not add to the transportation cost for the School District. 

Potential Requested Exemptions: 

 Minimum Frontage on a Public Road. 
 Minimum lots sizes 
 Side and rear yard setbacks. 

 

 

 









5

8

7

6

1

3

2

4

10

9

11

12

16

17

18

19

20

22
23

24

29

2
8

27

25

26

13

14

30

31

32

33

34

35

37

38

39

40

15

S87°47'35"E  790.53'

N
8
4
°
3
5
'5

0
"
E

  
3
5
1
.9

8
'

N

0
6
°
4
2
'
2
9
"
W

 
 
1
9
5
.
2
8
'

60.00'

S87°47'35"E

25.00'

N02°12'25"E

4

5

.
1

8

'

N

1

0

°
2

0

'
4

1

"
W

S

1

0

°

2

0

'
4

1

"
E

6

9

.
2

5

'

C

1

N88°17'09"W
  396.02''

N88°22'49"W
  606.78'

N
0
2
°
4
1
'
1
0
"
E

 
 
3
4
7
.
1
2
'

N
0
0
°
4
9
'
3
2
"
E

 
 
3
2
0
.
0
0
'

N88°26'09"W

120.45'

L
1

L2L4

L
5

N88°26'09"W

120.45'

S
0
0
°
4
9
'
3
2
"
W

 
 
2
8
0
.
0
0
'

N
0
0
°
4
9
'
3
2
"
E

 
 
2
8
0
.
0
0
'

S
0
0
°
4
9
'
5
1
"
W

 
 
3
2
0
.
0
0
'

L3

8
0
.
7
5
'

S
0
0
°
5
7
'
0
6
"
W

8

0

.

5

4

'

S

5

0

°

0

3

'

5

8

"

E

9

3

.

6

0

'

S

4

3

°

2

2

'

0

7

"

W

13.95'

S01°05'29"W

60.00'

S
0
1
°
0
5
'
2
9
"
W

 
 
 
1
2
2
.
7
0
'

S

0

8

°
4

6

'
4

5

"
W

 
 
 
1

3

4

.
7

6

'

C

2

21

5
6
.
3
8
'

S
0
0
°
5
2
'
1
6
"
W

36

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0' 54.0'

54.0'

94.8'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

5

0

.

0

'

9

1

.

5

'

1

0

1

.

0

'

134.2'

8

9

.
6

'

77.5'

OUTLOT  5

1

6

.

4

'

9

1

.
2

'

1

1

0

.

6

'

1

1

0

.
0

'

5

0

.

0

'

5
4
.
2
'

9

6

.
8

'

9
4
.
1
'

1
2
7
.
8
'

97.3'

1

0

8

.

3

4

1

.

6

'

1

2

1

.
4

'

6
7
.
7
'

9
0
.
5
'

1

3

3

.
0

'

1
2
8
.
4
'

5

5

.
0

'

9

3

.
1

'

1

3

2

.

6

'

8
9
.
8
'

4

0

.
0

'

5
4
.
5
'

5
4
.
4
'

140.6'

4

0

.

0

'

4

0

.

0

'

4
0
.
6
'

1

2

6

.
0

'

8

8

.

5

'

8

2

.

2

'

1

1

3

.
5

'

9

7

.

7

'

6
4
.
4
'

6
4
.
0
'

1

0

5

.

7

'

1

4

9

.

4

'

1

0

1

.
0

'

2

9

.
5

'

4

0

.
1

'

6

2

.
0

'

3

9

.

2

'

5

9

.
6

'

5

4

.
0

'

5

4

.
0

'

5

4

.
0

'

5

4

.
2

'

5

0

.
2

'

1

1

0

.
0

'

1

1

0

.
0

'

1

1

0

.
0

'

1

1

0

.
0

'

1

1

0

.

0

'

1

1

0

.
0

'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

5
2
.0

'

5
4
.0

'

5
4
.0

'

5
4
.0

'

5
7
.4

'

51.1'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

1
1
0
.
0
'

3

6

6

.

8

'

OUTLOT 1

1.00 ac.

7.5 ac.

O.L.  4

4,915 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.
5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f. 5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f. 5,940 s.f.
5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

8,866 s.f.

54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

54.0' 54.0'

54.0'

54.0'

32.2'

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

6,315 s.f.

6,509 s.f.

6,645 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

5,940 s.f.

6,6540 s.f.

6,288 s.f.

8,802 s.f.

7,157 s.f.

8,048 s.f.

7,019 s.f.

8,945 s.f.

8,692 s.f.

7,185 s.f.

8,391 s.f.

7,926 s.f.

8,692 s.f.

8,511 s.f.

10,033 s.f.

8,204 s.f.

9,552 s.f.

O.L. 3

O.L.  2

S89°30'11"E

3

7

.

1

'

3

7

.

1

'

THE VISTAS OF LAKE GENEVA

CONCEPTUAL PLAN #8

SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT

 LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN

OAKDALE ESTATES

STORM WATER

FACILITY LOCATION

STORM WATER

FACILITY LOCATION

R
=

45'

R
=

4
5
'

POSSIBLE FUTURE PARK LOCATION

REVISED DATE: 5-15-2018

REVISED DATE: 5-10-2018

DATE:  04-18-2018

SHEET 1 OF 1

La Salle St.

L

a

 
S

a

l
l
e

 
S

t
.

La Salle St.

HILLCREST

CONDOMINIUM

E

d

g

e

w

o

o

d

S

t
r
e

e

t

P
l
a
t
t
e
 
A

v
e
.

O
a
k
d
a
l
e
 
S

t
.

(
U

n
i
m

p
r
o
v
e
d
)

K
e
n
d
a
l
l
 
L
n
.

W
i
l
l
i
a
m

 
A

v
e
.

Lots 1 - 8

OAKDALE ESTATES

Lots 22 - 29

NOTES:

1. TOTAL AREA IS 17.26 ARES.

2. LOTS 1 - 40 ARE TO BE SOLD AS

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS.

3. ALL LOTS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 5,000

S.F. IN SIZE.

4. 30' STREET SETBACK, 20' REAR

OFFSET AND 5' SIDE OFFSETS.

5. 10' WALKING TRAIL AND OUTLOTS TO

BE MAINTAINED BY HOME OWNERS

ASSOCIATION.

6. HILLTOP STREET TO BE A PUBLIC

RIGHT-OF-WAY. OUTLOTS 2, AND 3 TO

BE PRIVATE DRIVES.

7. ALL LOTS TO BE SERVED BY

SANITARY SEWER AND WATER.

8. PRIMARY ENVIRONMENTAL

CORRIDOR TAKEN FROM WALWORTH

COUNTY 2035 COMPREHENSIVE LAND

USE PLAN.

CSM #2496

CSM #2507

Proposed 10' walking trail

LEGEND

8" WP

SAN(P)

Existing Water Main

Existing Sanitary Main

Primary Environmental

Corridor per Walworth County

2010 Land Use Plan

LAKE GENEVA

HILLS SUBD.

LAKE GENEVA

WOODLANDS

CONDOMINIUM

UNPLATTED LANDS

UNPLATTED LANDS

THE COTTAGES OF LAKE GENEVA CONDOMINIUM

WHISPERING

HILLS CONDO.

E

x

i
s

t
i
n

g

 
2

0

'
 
W

.
M

.
 
E

a

s

e

m

e

n

t

H

illt
o
p
 
S

t
.

V
i
s
t
a
 
C

t
.

Luna Ct.

DESIGNING IN TRUE DIRECTIONS

P

.
E

.
C

.

PRIMARY

ENVIRONMENTAL

CORRIDOR

PER WALWORTH

COUNTY 2035

COMPREHENSIVE

LAND USE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120



 

 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
 

The applicant is requesting as a “discussion only item” the Fence installation(s) be discussed for 
the property located at 640 W. Main Street. 

The applicant was before the Plan Commission on March 20, 2017 to present & review the 
installation of the fence location and material as proposed in their application request.  

This fence request identified materials that in staff’s opinion were “not acceptable” in nature and 
request that the applicant revise their request to include both fencing along Main Street on top of 
the retaining wall and the wall in the side yard along the White River. 

Staff’s (Jackie Mitch of Vandewalle) recommendation in the minutes was that the fencing 
materials be of like materials that were proposed on the deck areas of the Downtowner. These 
materials revisions areto “clearly depict wire fencing on top of the retaining wall on the Main St. 
wall and the wall in the side yard” on the revised landscape plan. 

In addition the fence height is not to exceed the maximum height for fences as laid out in the 
zoning code which has a maximum of 36” on any street side property line. 

 

March 20, 2017 Minutes attached. 

 

 

Applicant: 
FYF, LLC 
43 S. Water St East 
Fort Atkinson WI 53538 

Request: 
The Downtowner – Discussion Only 
Fence Installation on Main St and Patio area   

Agenda Item:14 
 



















 
 

120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax  

www.vandewalle.com 

 

Shaping places, shaping change  

To: City of Lake Geneva 

From: Mike Slavney, FAICP, City Planner 

Date: May 15, 2018 

Re: Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process 

The City adopted the updated Comprehensive Plan on December 14, 2009. As a dynamic 
community facing a myriad of growth issues, the City receives requests for Plan amendments in the 
coming years, well before the required update in 2019. To provide a manageable, predictable, and 
cost effective process, the City has established a single plan amendment cycle every year.  

Several Wisconsin communities use an annual plan review and amendment process cycle to ensure 
these evaluations and adjustments are handled in a predictable and efficient manner. The City Clerk 
will accept applications for Plan amendments from May 22 through June 29, 2018. Applications 
will be reviewed by the Plan Commission at its July and August meetings. Applicants may adjust 
their applications to respond to Plan Commission concerns, and all revised applications must be 
finalized by August 27, 2018.  

The procedures to adopt or amend a Comprehensive Plan are defined under Section 66.1001(4), 
Wisconsin Statutes.  The City process needs to follow these requirements. The timeline on the 
following page presents a proposed five-month process to allow for plan amendment requests, 
consider amendments, and go through the adoption procedures in compliance with the State 
Statutes.  

This approach features a combined meeting of the Plan Commission and Common Council.   

During the meeting: 
1. the Common Council holds a Public Hearing on the requested Plan amendments; and  
2. the Plan Commission considers Plan amendment requests and public testimony, and then 

adopts a resolution making a specific recommendation on each of the requested Plan 
amendments to the Common Council. 

At a subsequent meeting of the Common Council, the Council will consider the Plan Commission’s 
recommendations, vote on motions for each requested Plan amendment, and finally, adopt an 
ordinance to officially adopt the Plan amendments per their individually voted motions. 

This combined meeting approach allows for the Plan Commission and Council to hear the same 
public testimony, prior to the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and the Council’s actions. 

  

http://www.vandewalle.com/


 

May 17, 2017   Page 2 

City of Lake Geneva 

2018 Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process 

Activity May June July August Sept. Oct. 

Plan Commission Announces the 
Opening of the Plan Amendment 
Process, and Reviews the Draft 
Public Participation Plan 

May 21  

 

   

City Clerk Accepts Plan 
Amendment Applications 

May 22 - June 29 
 

   

Plan Commission Recommends 
Adoption of the Public 
Participation Plan 

 

June 18 

 

   

Council Adopts Public 
Participation Plan 

 
June 25     

Plan Commission Reviews Plan 
Amendment Applications 
(Requests & Staff Analysis 
included in Plan Comm. Packet.) 

 

 July 16 Aug. 20   

Plan Commission Recommends 
Setting Public Hearing by 
Council 

 

  Aug. 20   

Council Sets Public Hearing 
(applications frozen)  

 
 

 
Aug. 27   

City Clerk Distributes Requested 
Plan Amendments to 
Surrounding and Overlapping 
Jurisdictions 

 

 

 

Aug. 29   

Public Review Period 
(Newspaper published Wed.) 

 
 

 
 Sept. 5 - Oct. 14 

Joint City Council and Plan 
Commission Meeting 
1. Council Holds Public Hearing 

2. Plan Commission Adopts     
Resolution Recommending Plan 
Amendments 

 

 

 

  Oct. 15 

Council Adopts Ordinance on 
Recommended Plan 
Amendments 

 

 

 

  Oct. 22 

City Clerk Distributes Amended 
Plan to Surrounding and 
Overlapping Jurisdictions 

 

 

 

  

After 
Adop-
tion 

 

 


	1. 5 21 2018 Agenda Amended
	3. 4 16 2018 Plan Commission Minutes
	6. 831 Wrigley Dr Downtown Design
	7. 530 532 Stone Ridge Dr Condo Plat
	8. 805 Cumberland Trail CUP
	9. 239 Cook St CUP
	10. 723 Geneva St CUP
	11. 190 E Main St CUP
	12. 1111 N Edwards Blvd Hampton Inn GDP
	13. Summerhaven Amend PIP
	14. The Vistas of Lake Geneva Concept Plan
	15. 640 W Main St Fence Installation Discussion
	16. 2018 Letter & Schedule for Annual Comp Plan Amendment Process



